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We acknowledge Wujal Wujal as the home of the Kuku Yalanji, Kuku Nyungul and
Jalunji clans.

The ‘rainforest people’, the traditional owners and custodians of our area.

We recognise and respect Bama cultural heritage, values, beliefs and continuing
relationships and responsibility to this land and sea country.

We honour and respect the Elders past, present and future.

B . L UJAL WUJAL

R . .« Aboriginal Shire Councﬂr
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A Message from our Mayor

period.

community.

Kiley is a true force of nature, sheis
driven, determined, and dedicated with a passion for
improving Council’s performance and delivery.

We have already witnessed the results of her dedication in
many ways, all having a very positive impact within Council
and the wider community.

During this past year we were cut off from the outside world
on two occasions. Flooding early in 2023 cut us off physically
from being able to exit or enter the community and in April of
2023 the community was cut off with no access to phones or
internet due to the failure of a Mount Misery Communication
Tower run by a network provider.

Although dissimilarin their nature, the result of both
occurrences had very similarimpact on our community’s

On behalf of my fellow Councillors, | am very pleased to present Wujal Wujal
Aboriginal Shire Council’s Annual Report for the 2022-2023 reporting year. As Mayor
it is great to witness all the positives within Council and our community during this

Along with the other elected representatives we continue to advocate strongly with
all levels of government to raise awareness of the needs of Wujal Wujal, working to
find tangible long-term solutions to the challenges we face.

During this financial year the community has welcomed our new Chief Executive
Officer Kiley Hanslow to both the leadership of the council and as a part of our small

‘Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council

17 October 2022 - @
Today we welcomed our new CEQ, Kiley Hanslow, and her pariner Lawrence to Wujal Wujal. They
come to us from the NT and a number of locals know Kiley from high school years. We look
forward to working together to make Wujal Wujal an even better place to be. Welcome!

ability to access essential services, as with no intermet there is no ability to pay for goods such as food and

fuel electronically. These occurrences have driven our council’s search for solutions, we are pleased to

advise that we now have a solution that will allow us reliable independent internet access. This solution

will be installed and operational very early in the 2023-2024 financial year, in time for the coming Wet

Season.

Another highlight has been the reinstatement of an after-school sports program for our children at the

Sports and Recreation Centre during this period, and the sound of children’s laughter as they play is now

one of the things I enjoy the most as | move through our community.

There have been many other highlights to the year, and the proof of our teams’ hard work and planning

are found within this report.

To the community, thank you for your support in Council representing Wujal Wujal and proactively

contributing to the future of Wujal Wujal.

S

Bradley Creek, Mayor

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023
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From the CEO’s desk

| feel very fortunate to have been welcomed in October 2022 by elected members,
council staff and the beautiful Wujal Wujal community into the role of Chief Executive
Officer. Since my commencement, my team and | have worked tirelessly to serve the
Wujal Wujal community, in line with Council’s mission of actively seeking opportunities
to improve the lifestyle of its residents together with embracing the voice of the three
Clans and families of Wujal Wujal. All this in mind with a focus on financial
sustainability, governance, and continuous improvement.

I am pleased to present the Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report for
2022-2023 to our Wujal Wujal community and our valued stakeholders.

This annual report is our report to the community on Council’s performance over the
2022-2023 financial year against the objectives of the Annual Operational Plan, and the priorities of the
Corporate Plan 2022-27. We highlight our achievements and note any areas in which we did not meet our
planned goals and targets. This report is designed to meet our obligations under section 181 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012.

Small communities like ours face unique challenges. The Wujal Wujal population fluctuates between 400
to 600 people, depending on families’ movements. While these numbers are small and the physical area
managed by Council is also small (approximately 20km?), Council is however still responsible for providing
the same essential services as those provided by much larger councils.

This creates one of our ongoing challenges; how to provide the best service while only having limited
population to draw our staff from. Our focus this year has been to strengthen our relationships with
agencies that can assist us with the recruitment, employment, and training of local community members
and this will continue to be one of our primary focus points in the coming 2023-2024 year.

This Annual Report also highlights Council's journey of financial recovery, increasing own-source revenue,
improvement of governance and financial processes, improving management and reporting of financial
agreements, and the dedication of our employees in providing quality services to the community.

I am pleased to note that we have made significant progress this financial year. The coming 2023-2024
period will be even more rewarding as we will see the results of work that we initiated during the 2022-2023
financial year.

Financial Recovery Journey: Over the past year, the Council has made significant progress in its financial
recovery journey. Despite the challenges posed by our remote location, dependence on grants, and low
revenue, we have managed our financial situation carefully whilst ensuring the delivery of effective,
professional, and community-minded services to the Wujal Wujal community.

Increasing Own-Source Revenue: One of our key objectives has been to increase own-source revenue, and
I am pleased to report that we have made notable strides in this area. Through strategic initiatives and
partnerships, we have successfully improved our revenue streams, reducing our reliance on external
funding sources. However, we recognise the need to continue these efforts in the upcoming financial year
to further enhance our financial sustainability.

Improvement of Governance and Financial Processes: Council has prioritised the improvement of
governance and financial processes to ensure transparency, accountability, and efficiency. We have
implemented robust financial management systems and procedures, enhancing our ability to track and
monitor expenditure. These improvements have allowed us to make informed decisions and allocate
resources effectively, ultimately benefiting Council and the community.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023 Page 6 of 82



Improvement of Relationships with our Stakeholders: A key objective of this 2022-2023 financial year has
been improving relationships with our stakeholders, including community and local organisations,
suppliers, and other local, State and Federal governments. Open, collaborative, and transparent
communications have increased Council’s effectiveness and improved operations.

Employees Working Together: Our dedicated employees have played a crucial role in providing services to
the Wujal Wujal community. Their commitment, collaboration, and professionalism have been instrumental
in achieving our goals. We commend their efforts and recognise the importance of fostering a supportive
and inclusive work environment that encourages teamwork and innovation.

Plans for the Upcoming Financial Year: Looking ahead, we remain committed to increasing own-source
revenue further. We will explore new opportunities for revenue generation while ensuring that our
activities, time, and commitments offer value to both the Council and the community. Our focus will be on
sustainable initiatives that align with the needs and aspirations of the Wujal Wujal community.

Challenges and Mitigation: We acknowledge the challenges posed by our remote location, dependence on
grants, and low revenue. To mitigate these challenges, we will continue to manage our financial situation
carefully, seeking innovative solutions and exploring partnerships that can help us overcome these
obstacles. Our goal is to provide an effective, professional, and community-minded service while ensuring
the long-term financial stability of the Council.

Highlights: Throughout the year, we have brought positivity back to the community through various
events, including the 2022 Wujal Wujal Foundation Day, Wujal Wujal Christmas Celebration, March Against
Domestic Violence, Anzac Day event, Community Togetherness Day and Concert and NAIDOC Week
events, and planning for the Wujal Wujal 2023 Rodeo and Wujal Wujal 2023 Foundation Day event . These
events have fostered community togetherness, celebrated our culture, and showcased the resilience and
spirit of the Wujal Wujal community.

Conclusion: In conclusion, the Council's financial recovery journey, increasing own-source revenue,
improvement of governance and financial processes, and the dedication of our employees have been key
highlights of the past year. As we move forward, we remain committed to overcoming challenges,
enhancing financial sustainability, and providing an effective, professional, and community-minded service
to the Wujal Wujal community. Together, we will continue to build a brighter future for all.

Kiley Hanslow, Chief Executive Officer

New CEO Kiley Hanslow and husband
Lawrence with community members at
the Bloomfield Falls.
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Shire Profile

Mountainous terrain and dense tropical rainforest, tropical climate surround this relatively remote
community which'is set on the magnificent Bloomfield River.

Wujal Wujal is the local Kuku-Yalanji clan name meaning ‘many falls’, highlighting the many sacred
waterfalls in our landscape.

p— The imagery this name invokes also captures

r our multifaceted region of ranges, rivers and
' reef. It reflects our sparkling coastline and
abundant wildlife.

Wujal Wujal "Q

Mulligan Hwy

Our ancestry dates back on our traditional

Cape Tribulation Coral Sea

lands for thousands of years and our
indigenous language is still spoken in the
Mossman .
Mt Carbine Commun[ty.

Port Douglas

Daintree @

Our local clans are the Kuku Nyungul and
Jalunji peoples and the Eastern Kuku Yalanji
who have native title to the Wujal Wujal area.

Our Elected Members

Council is made up of the Mayor and four Councillors who are elected by the community every four years to represent
the views of residents within Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire. The next election will be held on 16 March 2024.

The council and councillors are accountable to the residents of Wujal Wujal through provisions contained within the
Local Government Act (2009), which is Council’s guiding legislation.

A councillor forms part of the team in which the residents of Wujal Wujal have placed their trust in to make decisions
on their behalf and are therefore entitled to expect high standards of conduct from the councillors.

The legislation is founded on five (5) local government principles whereby the Council must be accountable, effective,
efficient, and sustainable and that a Councillor must comply with, and apply, while performing their role as an elected
representative.

it
& effective
Processes

N

Council must be accountable,
effective, efficient and
sustainable.

The five (5) principles are of equal importance.

Councillors must comply with, and Good
apply these principles while

governance

performing their role as an
elected

representative.
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Councillors are responsible to:

1. Ensure the local government discharges its responsibilities under the Local Government Act (2009)
2. Ensure the Corporate Plan is achieved

3. Ensure compliance with all applicable laws

4. Provide high quality leadership to the local government and the community

5. Participate in council meetings, policy development and decision-making

6. Being accountable to the community for the local government's performance

The fundamental role of Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council’s elected members is to serve the interests of Wujal
Wujal as a whole.

The importance of the role of councillors cannot be underestimated. It involves a strong commitment to achieve
effective local government, which aims to improve the quality of life in Wujal Wujal.

Wujal Wujal’s elected representatives promote the positive attributes and opportunities of Wujal Wujal, foster
positive relationships and form cohesive partnerships with all tiers of government to benefit the residents and the
community.

Elected Member Profiles

Mayor | Bradley Creek

Portfolio: Governance and Finance portfolios and all other portfolios with relevant Councillors.

. Elected Councillor March 2016, Elected Mayor March 2020.

Deputy Mayor | Vincent Tayley

Portfolio: Economic, Environment and Tourism, Land and Culture, Community Lifestyle, Law
and Order.

Elected Councillor March 2016.

Councillor | Robert Bloomfield
Portfolio: Infrastructure/, Community, Lifestyle, Sports and Recreation.

Nominated March 2015, re-elected Councillor March 2016.

Councillor | Vanessa Tayley
Portfolio: Community Lifestyle, Audit Committee.

Appointed September 2019, elected March 2020

Councillor | Regan Kulka

Portfolio: Law and Order, Economic and Environment, Tourism, Land and Culture,
Infrastructure, Audit Committee.

Elected 2012, Re-elected 2016, Re-elected April 2020.
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Our Mission

To serve the community through a sustainable and equitable delivery of services with a focus on local
priorities.

To contribute to the economic development and the improvement of the quality of life of residents.

Our Values
Our values are all concerned, in their various ways, with excellent customer service and the economic

development of the Shire.
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Feature Story: Equal employment opportunity

Council is committed to the implementation of, and adherence to, equal employment opportunity
principles in all facets of our operations. We treat our employees and employment applicants fairly when
making decisions on selection and promotions. These decisions are made on factors such as skills,
qualifications, abilities, and aptitude.

Where possible Council aims to employ locals and to provide them with opportunities to develop within
their roles.

Council employed a total of 56 staff during the 2022-2023 financial year, in full time and part-time/casual
employment.

Office | Corporate Infra- Kinder- Community | Totals

of the | Services | structure | garten Services

Full Time: Male 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 4
Full Time: Female 2 6 0 2 1 2 0 13
Total full time 2 7 3 2 1 2 0 17
Part-time/Casual: 0 0 18 0 0 0 1 19
Male

Part=time/Casual: 0 0 4 1 1 3 1 20
Female

Total Part time / 0 0 22 1 1 3 12 56
Casual

Full time vs Part-time / Casual

Ratio Male:Female

R
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Statutory Information

Council meetings, councillor attendance and remuneration

Section 257 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) requires Council to meet once a
month to make decisions on governing the local government area of Wujal Wujal.

Council meetings are attended by the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Councillors, the CEO, Senior Management,
and any other staff as required to assist Council in any decision-making.

Ordinary meetings are open to the public and meeting agenda are available prior to the meeting on the
council’s website: https://wujalwujalcouncil.gld.gov.au/council/council-meetings-agendas-and-minutes/.
Special meetings

During the 2022-2023 financial year council held four special meetings.

An overview of their purpose is outlined in the following table:

Special meeting Purpose
date
06 September Appointment of Chief Executive Officer
2022
11 October 2022 Consideration and adoption of the Wujal Wujal Empowerment System Model

28 February 2023 | Strategic planning for budget 2023/24.

22 March 2023 Review and adoption of council policies: o Leave Polley

S e Performance, Misconduct and
e Anti-Discrimination, Workplace L .
] ) Discipline Policy
Bullying and Harassment Policy
e Attendance and Absenteeism
Policy

e Code of Conduct for Employees

e Recruitment and Selection Policy
e Vehicle Use Policy
e Work, Health, and Safety Policy

e Drug and Alcohol Policy
e GCrievance and Dispute Policy

Councillor attendance | LGR s186 (c)

Council is required to report on the number of local government meetings that each councillor attended
during the financial year.

Council meetings were generally held on the third Thursday of each month during the 2022-2023 financial
year. Aschedule of meeting dates is adopted by Council at the first Council meeting of the calendar year
and is published on the Wujal Wujal Council website.

Name Ordinary Meetings Special Meetings Total
Mayor Bradley Creek 12 4 16
Deputy Mayor Vincent Tayley 6 3 9
Councilor Robert Bloomfield 11 4 15
Councilor Vanessa Tayley 12 4 16
Councilor Regan Kulka 12 3 15

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023 Page 13 of 82



The total remuneration, including superannuation contributions,
paid to each councillor during the financial year | LGR s186(a)

The table below reflects total Councillor remuneration including superannuation and total expenses,

including mobile phone, travel, and vehicle allowances for the 2022-2023 financial year.

Positon _____ Name | MeetingFees _ Vehicle _ Phone __Towl ____

Mayor Bradley Creek $4,000.00 @ $1,000.00 $128, 767.35
Deputy Mayor Vincent Tayley $71,807.19
Councilor Regan Kulka $18,397 $62,236.15
Councilor Vanessa Tayley $18,397 $62,236.15
Councilor Robert Bloomfield | $18,397 $62,236.15

Councillors | Complaints referred to the Assessor | LGR s186 (1)
(f) (3)

Council is committed to the ethical principles and obligations contained in the Local Government Act 2009
and Public Sector Ethics Act 1994.

Under s186(e)(f) and (g) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (LGR), Council’s annual report must
contain details of any orders and complaints about councillors during the financial year. Details for 2022-23
are as follows:

Local Government Regulation No.

e complaints referred to the assessor under section 150P(2)(a) of the LGA by the local government, a 1
councillor of the local government or the chief executive officer of the local government

e matters, mentioned in section 150(3) of the LGA, notified to the Crime and Corruption Commission 0
* notices given under section 150R(2) of the LGA 0
* notices given under section 1505(2)(a) of the LGA 0
e decisions made under section 150W(1)(a), (b) and (e) of the LGA 0
¢ referral notices accompanied by a recommendation mentioned in section 150AC(3)(a) of the LCA 0
e occasions information was given under section 150AF(4)(a) of the LGA 0

e occasions the local government asked another entity to investigate, under chapter 5A, part 3, division 5 of 0o
the LGA for the local government, the suspected inappropriate conduct of a councillor

e applications heard by the conduct tribunal under chapter 5A, part 3, division 6 of the Act about whethera 0o

councillor engaged in misconduct or inappropriate conduct.

Disciplinary action against councillor under section 1501 (2) of
the Local Government Act (LGR s186 (d) (i) (ii) (iii)

There we no orders, decisions or recommendations made under this section of the LGA during the 2022-
2023 financial year.
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Administrative Action Complaints | LGR s187 (1)(2)(a)(b)

Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council is committed to providing a level of service that does not attract
complaints. Council does however acknowledge the right of anyone to provide feedback, both positive
and negative, onits services and / or to lodge a complaint about a decision or action it takes.

As such we are committed to dealing fairly with any administrative action complaints through the process
outlinedin the ‘General Complaints Policy’ which is publicly available via Council’s website ‘Complaints
Management General Policy’. This policy has been implemented to ensure that complaints are managed
fairly, promptly and professionally. Council is committed to ensuring:

e Anyone who is dissatisfied about an administrative action of council can easily lodge a complaint.

Complainants will be provided with reasonable assistance to make their complaint, if necessary.
e Complainants will not suffer any reprisal from council or its staff for making a complaint.

e Complaints will be responded to quickly and in an objective and fair way.

e Complainants will be advised of the decision and reasons.

e Ifa complainantis not satisfied that a complaint has been satisfactorily resolved, Council will inform
the complainant of any further internal or external right of review/appeal.

e Complaints will be recorded, monitored, and reported on to identify improvements in the council’s
systems, practices, and service delivery.

Council is committed to continually improving their Complaints Management Process to ensure that
complaints are dealt with in a fair and equitable manner.

During 2022-2023 financial year:

Council did not receive any administrative action complaints,

There were no unresolved complaints from previous financial years.

Investigation notices and local government responses|
competitive neutrality complaints | LGA s190 (1) (i)(j)

Council did not receive any investigation notices under section 49 LGR 2012 for competitive neutrality
complaints.

Action taken for, and expenditure on, a service, facility, or
activity | LGR s190(1)(d)

There are no details to report during the 2022-2023 financial year on action taken for, and expenditure on, a
service, facility, or activity.

Beneficial enterprises | LGA s41

There were no beneficial enterprises conducted during the 2022-2023 financial year.

Business Activity | LGA s45(a) (b) (c)

Council did not conduct any business activities during the 2022-2023 financial year.
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Significant Business Activities | LGA S45 (b) (d)
Council did not conduct any significant business activities during the 2022-2023 financial year or during the

preceding financial year.

Competitive neutrality principle as applied to any significant
business activity | LGA s45€
Council did not conduct any significant business activities during the 2022-2023 financial year therefore the

competitive neutrality was not required to be applied.

Summary of investigation notices given for competitive
neutrality complaints | LGR s190(1) (i)
There were no notices or investigations conducted during the 2022-2023 financial year for competitive

neutrality complaints as there were no complaints.

Responses of recommendations on any competitive neutrality
complaints | LGR s190(1) (j)

There were no responses or recommendations required as there were no competitive neutrality
complaints during the 2022-2023 financial year.
The number of invitations to change tenders | LGR $190 (1)(e)

During the 2022-2023 financial year there were no invitations to amend tenders.

Summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted | LGR
s190 (1) (9)

During the 2022-2023 financial year there were no concessions for rates and charges granted.

Grants to Community Organisations | LGR s189(1)

Council did not allocate any expenditure for the 2022-2023
financial year on grants to community organisations. Waal Wojal Aboriginal Shire Counci

<]

Overseas Travel | LGR s188 (1) (a)
(b) (c) (€(e)

During 2022-2023 financial year no overseas travel was
undertaken by councilors or staff on behalf of Council in an
official capacity.

c Bana Yirriji Art Centre
2022-@

Sonya Creek painting her totem, Mili (Stinging Tree) on driftwood found on the beach at
Weary Bay.

Sonya is working on a major installation piece for the Cairns Gallery. This work will be
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Total remuneration packages to senior management and the
number of employees in each band | LGA s201 (s) (a) (b)

The following table details the total remuneration package for all senior management and the numberin
each band.

During the 2022-2023 financial year council farewelled CEO Stephen Wilton, Director of Works and Services
Victor Mills and Finance Manager Joanne Gowans.

We welcomed CEO Kiley Hanslow, Operations Manager Perry Gould and Corporate Manager Micah
Nkiwane to the leadership team.

Our leadership team is comprised of the following three roles:
o (Chief Executive Officer
e Manager Corporate and Commercial

e Operations Manager

Remuneration Packages to Senior Number of Senior Management in Band
Management ($100k per band)

Total value for all senior management $0-$100k $100k-$200k $200k-$300k $300k-$400k

$330, 407.24 0 3 0 0

Discretionary Funds | LGR s189(2)(a)
Council reports on the following information about it’s discretionary funds allocation:
(a) the total amount budgeted for the financial year as the local government’s discretionary funds.

(b) the prescribed amount (0.1% of the local government’s revenue from general rates for the
previous financial year) for the local government for the financial year.

(c) the total amount of discretionary funds budgeted for the financial year for councillors to allocate
for each of the following purposes: capital works for community purposes and other community
purposes.

(d) the amount of discretionary funds budgeted for use by each councillor for the financial year.

(e)if a councillor allocates discretionary funds in the financial year: the amount allocated, how it was
allocated, to who and for what purpose.

During 2022-2023 financial year: there were no discretionary funds budgeted for the financial year for
councillors to allocate.
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Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
16 March - Q

Community meeting 10am next Wednesday 22nd March under the Mango trees followed by a
BBQ at the Community Hall. This is your opportunity to hear what is happening in Wujal Wujal
from the different agencies and to ask any questions. Look forward to seeing you there!

Wujal Wujal community holds
regular meetings under the
mango trees in the centre of
town where all/any members of
community are welcome.

° Woujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
28 October 2022 - Q

Thanks to all who came along for the Wujal Wujal Foundation Day. Special thanks to our

sponsors/supporters - My Pathways, Pama Futures, Mayi Market Jabalbina Rangers, Cooktown
Slushys & Icecreams and our staff.

Wujal Wujal Foundation Day is a
commemorated with a Special Public
Holiday every year, thank you to the
members of community who
contributed to the celebrations in
October 2022.
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List of registers maintained | LGR s190 (1) (f)

The following registers are maintained by Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council:

Register

Delegations Register.

Purpose

To record the powers delegated to the CEO.

Access

Register available to the public at the
local government’s public office.

General Complaints
Register.

Record any complaints lodged.

Register available to the public at the
local government’s public office.

Councillor Conduct
Register.

To record any complaints against Councillors
and the summary of decision related to
complaints.

Available on Website.

Register of Interest
Personal Interest of
Councillors.

To record Financial and other personal
interests of Councdillors.

Available on the website.

Contracts Register.

Register of contracts of $200,000 or more.

Available on the website.
Being updated on an ongoing basis.

Local Law Register.

Aregister for each local law, containing the
laws name, purpose, and general effect.

Available on the website.

Roads map and Register.

The road register identifies:

e the category of every road

e the level of every road that has a xed level
e the length of every road

e [f the road is formed, gravelled pavement or
sealed pavement, the length and width of the
formed gravelled pavement or sealed
pavement part

Map and Register available to the
public

Resolutions made under LGR s250(1) | adoption of an expenses

reimbursement policy

There were no such resolutions made during the 2022-2023 financial year.

Resolutions made under LGR s250(2) | threshold for non-current

physical asset to be treated as an expense

There were no such resolutions made during the 2022-2023 financial year.

Local community members modelling

fabrics designed by local artists.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023
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The year in review

The Chief Executive Officer’s assessment of progress against its
5-year corporate plan and its annual operational plan | LGR s190
(1) (a)

I am pleased to provide this report of the excellent progress Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council has made
against both its corporate and operational plans.

Changes in senior staff since the writing of the corporate plan

At the time of writing the 2022 Corporate Plan structure and staffing of the senior management was as

follows:

Chief Executive Officer
Mr Stephen Wilton

—
Director Finance and Director Works and

Corporate Services Building Services
Vacant Victor Mills

The senior management team is represented as follows:

Chief Executive Officer

Mrs Kiley Hanslow

E—
Manager of Corporate

& Commercial ] Manager Operations
Mr Perry Gould

Mr Micah Nkiwane

Major Program Areas

Council's Corporate Plan for 2022-2027 provides to all stakeholders the direction about council's strategic
priorities and related strategies.

The achievement of these outcomes within constraints of Council resources and support from all
stakeholders will benefit the present and future generations.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023 Page 20 of 82



The following are the areas of focus for the 2022-2027 Corporate Plan:

y. Corporate ™.

/ Governance,
|' Community
Safely &
J—— " Family
e N h Servir.es" / y
f Community i Corporate
' Services Services
.. / >
.//’- \\\ )
|'I Buill:!ing Enterprises
Services
\ /

e | Technical
Services

This corporate plan outlines the vision for the
Shire and lists the plans and strategies as well
as values that the Council, staff, and the
community at large embrace to provide a
sound basis for the development of the area,
in forming strategic cooperative alliances with
Councillors, staff, community members and all
relevant stakeholders. | recommend this
Corporate Plan to all our customers, both
internal as well as external.

Corporate Governance, Community Safely and Family Services

Aim: To provide leadership, direction, representation, and service to the community, and manage the

care and safety of families

Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Provide leadership through planned, transparent,
effective, and accountable government.

Provide direction through a system of official laws,
clearly stated goals, policies, and procedures.

Provide responsive and balanced representation of
all sectors of the community thus have an inclusive
community.

Provide quality service to the residents of the Shire.

Have an effective corporate governance system
that meets the statutory requirements and best
practice and obligations.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023

Council officers work closely with elected members,
keeping them fully informed through regular
reporting to Council meetings.

Review of policies and procedures has occurred
throughout the year. Local laws are updated as
required.

Council continues to focus on employing local
community members, drawing them from all sectors
of the community.

Council operations during the 2022-2023 year
provided an unbroken service to community.

Council dedicated time and resources to improving
its systems and processes that drive it’s governance
during the 2022-2023 year, working closely with
LGMA advisors to ensure it complies with statutory
requirements and obligations.
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Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Build strategic cooperative alliances with Council has continued to develop its cooperative
neighbouring Shires, relevant peak bodies and alliances.

other organisations that underpin council values. Senior staff attended and represented council and

our community at various meetings/conferences
during the 2022-2023 year with our neighbouring and
regional councils that saw not only the immediate
outcomes and benefits from those meetings, but
which also continue to benefit community on an
ongoing basis.

Manage natural disasters through community Being a small community, any natural disaster that
engagement. may occur affects the whole community.

Council has grown its alliances with other agencies
such as Queensland Police, Queensland Fire and
Emergency, Queensland Health, as well as many
State agencies.

o Located the tropical far north of Queensland Wujal
Ifyww“dw%:yyg::h;wklpu oo s g e ;swh: Wujal is subject to high rain fall in the wet season that
Tock g o i ot ar ey damgerou. e ooded foger can result in severe flooding which can at times cut
: ' the community off completely.

Council takes a very proactive approach to
communicating to community any risk of these
events occurring and works to maintain
communication and engagement with all of
community during such events through a variety of
means, including as shown in the image to the left,
through its social media platform.

Seasonal flooding can cut the community off from the outside world and poses risks to all residents.

The early warning flood detection system sounds loud alarm through a speaker system to residents
as water rises dangerously high.

Council keeps residents informed through a variety of methods including social media.

Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Provide Community Justice Programs to support Advocacy on behalf of Community Justice Group to

community members in need. community and Government for funding
requirements, supported with attendance at
Community Justice Meetings and Care and Support
meetings.
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Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Provide a system of risk management across all
facets of Council operations.

Corporate Services

Due to staffing changes and shortages Council was
not able to progress this during the 2022-2023
financial year and will look to focus on this during
the 2023-2024 financial year.

Aim: To manage Council's resources in a way that achieves maximum community benefit whilst

maintaining financial sustainability.

Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Maintain an efficient, committed and appropriately
skilled workforce.

Control income and expenditure in accordance with
statutes and council policies.

Prepare timely and accurate financial information.

Ensure expenditure achieves maximum benefit for
the community members.

Secure funding from all available sources.

Ensure compliance with relevant council revenue
policies, community service obligation policy and
procurement policy.

Provide accurate and timely agendas, minutes, and
reports.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023

Council continues to support its current workforce,
supporting their professional development as
required.

Council has complied with all regulations and policies
in its control of income and expenditure.

Despite several vacancies in key roles in the
Corporate and Commercial team during this period,
council has continued to provide timely and accurate
financial information. Financial reporting to elected
members occurs monthly as part of the agenda for
Ordinary Council meetings, and more in-depth
reporting and review is undertaken at specific Special
meetings as required.

Our new manager of Corporate and Commercial
Micah Nkiwane, has turned his focus to this
important area of responsibility. Balancing our need
forfinancial sustainability with our goals of improving
the commercial prospects for community.

This has been a focus area for council this year.
Council has contracted Peak Services to assist with
the management of securing funding from all
available sources.

Council continues to comply with all relevant policies.

Council has improved its delivery on this performance
indicator during the 2022-2023 financial year through
the appointment of an Executive
Assistant/Governance Secretary to its staff in April
2023. This role is responsible for the provision of
accurate agenda, minutes, and reports.
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Strategy and Performance Indicators

Ensure prompt and timely action on council
decisions and public enquiries.

Provide courteous, friendly, and effective
communication that can be seen, heard, and read
both internally and externally.

Continue to develop and modify council policy.

Continually revise IT systems to reflect the changing
directions and technology developments.

Adapt
Solutions

Simplifying Asset
Management

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023

Assessment of progress

Council has provided timely action on decisions
throughout the 2022-2023 financial year. There
were no public enquiries during the period of this
report.

Council has reinstated the distribution of the
community newsletter 'The Kaban'.

This service to council and community has been able
to be reinstated due to funding from Queensland
State Libraries enabling the employment of a staff
member in the Indigenous Knowledge Centre.

These newsletters are distributed internally to staff
and made available to community through hardcopy
printouts distributed to community groups and
through our public website.

Council also utilises the social media platform
Facebook for distribution of important news items,
employment vacancies, community events and
much more.

This annual report is illustrated throughout with
examples from this social media platform from the
2022-2023 financial period.

Council continues to manage its policies to ensure
they are relevant. The maintenance and
management of this is the responsibility of the new
governance staff employed during the 2022-2023
financial year and this will become a focus area for
the 2023-2024 year as there is considerable work
required to ensure any outdated policies are
reviewed, renewed, and brought to council for
formal adoption.

Council has adopted and incorporated new
technology during the 2022-2023 financial year that
was the result of several years investigation into
possible solutions.

The “Adapt 1 Solution” has now replaced our
previous system, and in conjunction with a Starlink
connection we have realised significant increase in
the speed and reliability of our internet access and
saved a significant amount of money from our
previous monthly charges.

This solution also assists Council in its journey
towards its ACSC Essential 8 accreditation.
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
3 August - Q

Hi Wujal!

Cool Cultural Burns are scheduled in Wujal Wujal next week from 7 August 2023 to 11 August
2023.

Burning whilst the community is still quite green is a good way to reduce the fuel load, so we
don't have any issues with fires burning out of control once the Official Fire Season starts on 1
September 2023.

The properties that border Lot 34 SP338357 are shown in the picture below. Residents of these
lots, please be advised a permit to burn will be lodged on Monday 7 August 2023.

Can community members please share this information with the residents that live in these areas.
Smoke from the cool cultural burns may affect people with health conditions, such as asthma.
Please consider what actions should be taken to ensure they are safe and comfortable.

I want to

Examples of effective
communication to the
community using the
social media platform

Facebook.

Woujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
4 June - 3

We had a lovely time today in Wujal Wujal at the Community Togetherness Day. Thank you to our
wonderful sponsors and contributor of the day.
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Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Retain and recruit the best possible staff through Recruitment of the best possible staff has been a
good work practices, job specifications, and personal  priority during the 2022-2023 year and council has
development career path, training, and brought in several highly experienced staff to their
remuneration. team, including new staff into the following roles:

Chief Executive Officer, Corporate and Commercial
Manager, Operations Manager, Finance Manager
and Executive Assistant.

Utilise local human resources whenever available. Council prioritises the employment of local staff. Al
roles are advertised on the local social media sites,
on its public webpage and through word of mouth,
in addition to working closely with local agencies

Toige | Whgal Aberiginal Shis Coune and paid work trial staff as appropriate.

Love all things food? Love your Elders? This is the job for you.

An example of job vacancy listing on our website
v WLALSGURASORIERIAL SRy CONCY, and Facebook promotion of a role are shown in the

TR screenshot illustrations here.
7/3/2023

POSITION VACANT- Cook

Encourage innovative solutions to financial and The new Corporate and Commercial Manager

administrative problems. employed during the 2022-2023 year has expertise
in providing innovative solutions to problems,
Council looks forward to the positive impact this
will begin to have in the next financial year.

Provide a Centrelink agency service that meets the This year has seen several changes in the Centrelink

needs of residents of the Shire and surrounding areas ~ Officers with former staff retiring, replacement
staff trained and then left the district, another
replacement trained but failed to pass their
probation period.

Council is now in discussions with the Department
of Human Services regarding increasing funding to
provide Centrelink services, as Council is not
adequately funded by Centrelink and is running
Centrelink services at a loss/cost to Council.
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Technical Services

Aim: To develop and maintain infrastructure, land use planning and environment services to meet

community needs.

Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Improve and maintain road networks and
existing assets.

Seek funding from all available funding sources.

Provide quality plant that returns maximum
benefits to the Shire.

Manage riverbanks areas with sensitivity for
their ecologies and environment.

Seek contract work from neighbouring Shires and
organisations that operate in the region.

Maintain and constantly develop water systems
and plan for future community needs that meet
all licensing requirements.

Minor maintenance in the form of patching and
pothole repairs were undertaken.

Council is responsible for only a small area of road
infrastructure within its borders, approximately
15.7kms of road.

The team meet on a weekly basis with Peak Services,
who have been contracted to assist with the
management of securing funding from all available
sources.

Regularly maintained and in operational state.

Riverbanks are not maintained by council and are left
in a native state, no spraying is undertaken within
20meters of the waters-edge.

Road works for Banabilla Road were undertaken on
behalf of Douglas Shire Council and will continue into
the next financial year.

Maintenance continued. Council seeking funding for
2023-2024 financial year for upgrades to the filtration
system to bypass raw water intake and treatment
system water reservoir,
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council

25 January - @
WWASC CIVIL CREW POT HOLE REPAIRS - 25.01.2023
Our Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council work crew are currently repairing potholes around the
community under the direction of Civil Services Coordinator Geoffrey Rosendale, to make our
roads safer for community members and travellers.
Please drive carefully around the roadwork areas and give our work crew a wave. Excellent work,
team!... See more

Examples of some of the services
provided by council to the
community.

Wujal Wujal
Area Fire Management Group

Wujal Wujal
Operation Sesbania

BUSHFIRE RISK MITIGATION PLAN

15" January 2023 to 14™ January 2024

Version 2.1
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Strategy and Performance Indicators

Provide sewage systems for the community that
satisfy the licensing requirements and adheres to
all regulatory and legislative requirements.

Provide and enhance a cost-effective waste
management system.

Undertake compliance, education with other
service providers to ensure that environmental
health standards are meet and maintained.

Provide responsible, effective, and integrated
animal management service to the Shire.

Some of the community’s
canine residents.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2

Assessment of progress

Major works were undertaken for upgrades of
sewage treatment plant, at this stage
incomplete. Council is seeking funding and re-
assessment of initial installation, forecasting
completion during 2024.

All monitoring and maintenance works were
undertaken by council operations staff.

Compliance with environmental health standards
maintained.

New staff employed during the 2022-2023
financial year trained in their roles and
responsibilities. 2023-2024 will see anincreased
focus on appropriate training.

Council staff continue to provide regular service
to community. This year several of the
community’s dogs were injured in fights
between fully intact male dogs and Council
continues to promote the free de-sexing of all
dogs within community.

Council staff also continue to provide access for
all community to information about animal care.
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Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Develop local laws, policies, and procedures in No new laws or policies required during the 2022-
relation to animal management. 2023 year; policies are reviewed by staff regularly.

Work collaboratively with neighbouring Shires and Staff worked closely with Douglas Shire Council,
other land managers in the area of animal and pest ~ Cook Shire Council and Hope Vale Councils. Strong
management. collaborative relationships are in place.

Keeping the community
informed about pests and
risks they pose.

Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Provide ongoing training to staff. Training as required during the new for new and
existing staff. Engagement of several apprentices
during the year.

Ensure accident-free workplaces by appropriate Workplace Health and Safety Committee meetings

training and adhere to state work practices. with all managers were re-initiated during the year,

Information sharing and policy/procedures were
reviewed during these meetings.

WHS documentation and templates were updated to
provide better governance around WHS and
reporting.

The Wujal Wujal Planning Scheme is due for update
by December 2023. Discussions were held with Torres
and Cape Indigenous Councils Alliance (TCICA) to
undertake Planning Scheme reviewsin a
collaborative manner to ensure Planning Schemes

Manage the Planning Scheme and assess all
development and rezoning applications.

are updatedin an efficient and cost-effective

manner.
Deliver compliance based on priorities including Council operates a ‘Preferred Suppliers Register’. All
financial viability, licensed contracting, and suppliers are required to ensure they comply with all /
contractual responsibility. any insurance, registrations and QBCC Licencing.
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Community Services

Aim: To promote and develop a range of support services to cater for the divers needs of the

community.

Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Provide appropriate support for economic
development and employment that benefits the
Shire.

Seek funding from all available funding sources.

o Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
7 January - @

It's been a busy couple of days for our Mayor, CEO and executive leaders as we met with QRA (left
pic) to finalise an agreement for China Camp Road stabilisation works and explore options with
CEQ (right pic) for better food and produce options for Wujal Wujal. Making steps towards a
thriving Wujal Wujal community.

Strategy and Performance Indicators

Facilitate the provision of sporting and recreation
facilities to meet the needs of a cross section of
community residents.

After school programs
actively promoted and
available to all

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023

Elected members and council staff continually
investigating options for economic development.

An example of this was in January 2023 when elected
members and senior staff met with the Queensland
Reconstruction Authority (QRA).

Council has employed a more strategic approach
with sourcing funding that represents good value for
council and community.

Elected members and senior staff
exploring economic development
options for the community.

Assessment of progress

Council consistently applying for grants to upgrade
recreational infrastructure.

Existing facilities are well utilised by community.

Council employs two staff to run the free after
school program for the community’s youth.

Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
)
iday

week. Sport and Rec team (Shinane and
pm )pm Tuesday to Thursdaywith Chappy Gus
e bike competition is back at the Pump park!
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Strategy and Performance Indicators

Facilitate the provision of men's and women's
support services.

Maintain, expand, and broaden the opportunities for
youth and thus build young people's capacity for
self-improvement.

Research and promote projects that facilitate
sustainable cultural and social enterprise, such as
the Arts and Cultural Centre.

Increase opportunities to improve general
knowledge, literacy skills, culture enlightenment and
entertainment though the Indigenous Knowledge
Centre.

Provide kindergarten facilities that will enable kids to
have an early start schooling and thus provide better
transition to primary school.

Provide an effective, informative culturally
appropriate community radio system.

Provide Life Promotion Programs to support
community members in need.

Assessment of progress

Leased buildings provided for use by Men’s and
Women'’s services.

Repair of Women’s Centre facility to be undertaken
in the 2023-2024 financial year once funding source
identified.

An inclusive sport and recreation program was
developed and implemented to engage Wujal Wujal
youth in healthy and active social activities. This
sport and recreation program is attended by up to
40 children per day.

Projects to upskill and develop local artists and
develop quality art to be displayed in local, state,
and interstate exhibitions.

Planning for commencement of café to operate as a
social enterprise for training and development of
local people into the hospitality industry.
Assistance provided to community with the use of
computers.

First Five Forever Program facilitated.

Historical and language programs in the Indigenous
Knowledge Centre.

Quality Kindergarten facilities enable a supportive
and inclusive kindergarten and early learning
environment.

Kindergarten is well-attended and provides a
valuable early education work program.

Council employs one staff member who runs the
community radio station, supported by funding
from the National Indigenous Australians Agency
(NIAA).

Council no longer provides these programs.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023
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Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Provide quality aged and disabled care facilities and  Quality disabled and aged care is available to all

services. who need it within the community and to those
living nearby through facilities and programs
supplied by Commonwealth Home Support
Program (CHSP) and the use of the facilities
located in the centre of town.

Council supports the provision of quality and
empathic care inclusive services, effective
communication and collaboration with clients,
families, funding providers and other stakeholders.

Residents of the aged care facility
enjoying social activities.

Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Develop residential aged and disabled care Council has continued to investigate the options to

facilities and services. utilise available land for the development of a new
aged and disabled care facility for the community.
This work is ongoing.

Building Services

Aim: To develop and maintain and renovate infrastructure to improve community housing and council
buildings.

Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

The team meet on a weekly basis with Peak
Services, who have been contracted to assist with
the management of securing funding from all
available sources.

Seek funding from all available funding sources.
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Strategy and Performance Indicators Assessment of progress

Ensure the residents have access to good quality Maintenance of community houses continues and
housing. is available to on request.

Make representation to government to ensure that = Council engages both internal staff and external
adequate resources are available for housing, subcontractors to undertake housing maintenance
construction, major renovations, repairs, and and repairs.

maintenance.

) ) . ) We have assembled a preferred suppliers lists and
Deliver compliance based on priorities including

L . followed al QBUILD procurement and contract
financial viability, licenced contracting.

policies.

Improve strategies for intervention in building Our strategy has been to follow procurement
disputes before and after the construction process.  policy and contractual arrangements with Qbuild.

Operational Plan | Highlights of Achievements

Information on the organisation’s progress in achieving the strategies outlined in the operational plan was
provided to Council through regular reporting each quarter as required by legislation.

The following are some of the highlights of achievements during the 2022-2023 financial year against the
operational plan.

All staff were provided training in Information Communications and
Technolo gy {ICT), with an empha sis on Cyber Security through a userfriendly
—— oriline training platform that was easy to use and extremely ed ucational.

—

Councilimplemented an electronic payroll system.
N

Organisational structure reviewed and approved by Council.

Critical positions 2ssessed and recrultment underway.

T (2] 2WD0 Toyota tray backs purchased for @
[ Lol

Animazl Control and Water Officers. Oine M issan Navara duzl czh 4xqwith
canopy purchased for the Operations Manager.

‘Water, Animal and Ervironmental Health Control officers’ training under-
ﬂﬂ taken, and further training programmed. Operators currently undertaking
Certificate |1l in'Water Industry Cperations.

Fart time Indigenous Knowledge Centre { IKC) staff recruited and in
place, providing access four days a week to the facilities and programs

for allmembers of our community.
The IKC staff have also restarted publication of 2 community
newsletter { The Kahan) whichis being well received.
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Community Financial Report

The Community Financial Report s a plain English summary of Council’s Financial Statements for the period
1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 and provides an overview of Council’s financial management and performance
in accordance with Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012 and Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations. The financial statements this report is based on have also been
audited by the Queensland Audit Office.

The report is consistent with the 2022/2023 audited financial statements and aims to simplify Council’s
official Financial Statements by providing a visual representation of our financial performance and
financial position and include the following;:

1.

Statement of Financial Position provides a snapshot of

Statement of Comprehensive Income provides a Snapshot of highlights
summary of Council’s financial performance and includes
Council’s operating and capital revenue, operating Achievement

oy . of a positive
expenses, capital income and capital expenses for the ot rasult

period. of $3.87

million

Council’s Assets and Liabilities at 30 June 2023.

Statement of Cash Flows indicates where Council’s cash
came from and where it was spent. eehondoashH

Growth in
Community

Statement of Changes in Equity shows the overall Equity to
change for the yearin Council’s ‘net wealth.’

$48.79 million

Growth in

equivalents

Measures of Financial Sustainability provide three to $6.84
sustainability indicators designed to help monitor the million

current and long-term sustainability of Council.

Collectively the statements provide a detailed profile on the financial performance and health of Coundil.

Revenue Sources and Expenditure: where does
the money come from and where does it go?

Council received $11.76 million
in operating revenue and
$0.68 million in capital revenue.

Council spent $3.24 million

on employee benefits. ’ m
Council purchased $4.51 million

of materials and services. \ )
Council recognised $2.11 million in

depreciation and amortisation of '\ \
Council assets. l .
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1. Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Statement of Comprehensive Income measures how Council performed in relation to income and
expenses during the financial year. This statement illustrates how money received from Council operations

is spent.

Revenue

At a glance: Financial Statements for the period 1 July 2022 to 30

Summary

Operational revenue
decreased by $5,035,647
and Capital revenue
decreased by $25,246.

Capital revenue consists of
grants and subsidies from

Federal and State agencies
that allow Council to build
or upgrade its facilities.

Income

53%

M Fees
Rent

B Interest

W 5ales

W Other

W Grants

W Capital Grants

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023

June 2023

2023 2022
Operating Revenue 1,757,442 6,721,795
Operating Expenses 9,900,286( 8,717,997
Operating Position 1,767,156 | 1,996,202
Capital Revenue 681,586 706,832
Capital Expenses -814,020 0
Net Result 1,634,721 -1,289,370
Asset Revaluation surplus 2,236,897 2,808,173
Total Comprehensive income for the year 3,871,617| 1,518,803
Current Assets 7,731,614 3,731,807
Non Current Assets 48,593,159 48,530,667
Total Assets 56,324,773 52,262,473
current Liabilities 4,447,060 3,866,038
Non-Current Liabilities 3,081,549 3,471,890
Total Liabilites 7,528,609 7,337,928
|Net Community Assets (Equity) 48,796,162 | 44,924,544

9%

22% Income Source Value
Fees 1,122,308
Rent 177,813
Interest 8,268
Sales 2,761,380
Other 1,323,563
Grants 6,632,668
Capital Grants 413,028
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Expenditure

30%
20%

Summary: Expenditure
1% increased by $1,272,289 from

2021/2022.

This consisted of increase in

B Employee Benefits spend for materials and

W Materials and Services services ($763,166),
M Finance Costs employee benefits
B Depreciations & Amortisation ($99’087)

M Capital Expenses
and finance costs ($68,254).

Net position | 2012 - 2023

i
I
11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 A47/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

Legend Entry 5 | $5,460,323
$3,871,617
$4,483,813 — |
$1,518,803
- $2,020,733 $1,766,947 — $1,385,143
$491,505
— -$990,325
_ -$1.3:I?,253
-31,353,457
_— -$4,707,568

The net result is the difference between the income Council has received for the
financial year less the expenses it has incurred throughout the financial year.

In the financial year ended 30 June 2023, the Net Result for Council was a surplus of
$3.87 million. This surplus was achieved through an improvement in recurrent
revenue from the previous year ($5 million).
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2. Statement of Financial Position

Current Assets

The Statement of Financial

Position measures what we Current assets
own (our assets) and what we
owe (our debts), resulting in
our net worth at the end of Trade and other receivables $504,410

the financial year.

Cash and cash equivalents $6,841,449

Inventories $42,787
Other financial assets $252,068
Total current assets $7,731,614

Non-current assets

Other financial assets $2,225,885
Investment in joint venture $412,0957
Property, plant and equipment $45,054,316
Total non-current assets $48,503,159
Total assets $56,324,773

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables $618,046

Contract Liabilities $3,245,197

Borrowings $346,401

Lease Liabilities 50

Provisions $237,415

Total Current Liabilities $4,447,060

Non-current liabilities

Payables $34,307

Borrowings 52,939,816

Provisions $107,426

Total Non-Current Liabilities $3,081,549

Net community assets $48,796,162
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Through careful and effective financial management, Council increased its cash balances, or cash in
the bank. As cashis an asset, this increase of cash balances is reflected as an increase in assets.
Total Assets increased by $4,062,294.

W Cash

M Receivables
Inventories
Other

M loint venture

@ Property, Plant &

Equipment

Assets

Cash $6,841,449
Receivables $504,410
Inventories $42,787
Other $2,478,853
Joint venture $412,957
Property, Plant & Equipment $45,954,316

Breakdown of property, plant, and equipment

— 3%

1% —.

W Land

W Building

W Motor Vehicles

W Plant & Equipment

W Furniture, Fittings & Other
W '\Water

M Sewerage

W Road

W Other

W Work in Progress

Land $1,232,277
Building $15,436,393
Motor Vehicles $275,742
Plant & Equipment $1,330,501
Furniture, Fittings & Other $1,068
Water $7,406,869
Sewerage $4,254,658
Road $9,175,190
Other $5,164,3908
Work in Progress $1,677,220
Total $45,954,316
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3. Statement of Changes in Equity

In the 202/2023 financial year, Council’s net worth increased by $3.87 million.

Achieved a
positive
net result of
$3.87million.
—1

e The Statement of Cash Flows shows where Council’s cash came from and how it was spent
throughout the year. It differs from the earlier reports as non-cash items such as depreciation
are excluded.

4. Statement of Cash Flows

e The closing balance reflects how much cash Council had at year end.
e Restrictions are held over cash that has been received that has a performance obligation.

e The mostimportantis the cashflow from Operations, which is a good indicator of financial
health.

e Informs you of Council’s ability to generate cash flows fromits customers and pay for its
obligations which include suppliers and employees.

Cash flow
from investing
activities increased

Net cash flow
from financing
operations increased
from $617,439 to
$2,702,423.

from a deficit of
$964,031 to
$1,981,008.

Cash flow from investing activities include purchase and sale of property as well as well capital grants
and are largely instructed by grants, subsidies, contributions, and donations.

Cash flow from
financing activities

reduced
from $3,550,213 to a
deficit of $389,712.

Council has a large loan with
Queensland Treasury Corporation.

The payments of this loan each
month result in a decrease in
available cashflow.
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Council liabilities

6%

32% \

Total Liabilities increased by only

31%

$190,681.
W Payables Payables $652,353
m Contract liabilities Contract liabilities $3,245,197
mBorrowings Borrowings $3,283,218
Provisions Provisions $3,286,217

5. Measures of Financial Sustainability

The Financial Sustainability Statement and the associated measures (ratios) provide evidence of
Council’s ability to continue operating and provide an acceptable level of service and infrastructure to
the community into the future.

Council’s performance at 30 June 2023 against key financial ratios are listed below:

Financial Sustainability Ratios

Ratio Target Result
Operating Surplus Ratio Between 0% and 10% 15%
Asset Sustainability Ratio Greater than 9o% 1%
Net Financial Liabilities Ratio Not greater than 60% 2%

Operating Surplus and Net Financial Liabilities Ratios measure Council’s ability to maintain financial
capital over the long term.

The Asset Sustainability Ratio measures Council’s ability to maintain infrastructure capital over the long-
term.

e Council was able to achieve a positive operating surplus ratio.

e Council’s Asset Sustainability Ratio is well below the targeted range. This may indicate
insufficient spending on asset replacement.

e The Net Financial Liabilities Ratio is within target. This indicates there are no concerns over the
ability to repay debt from operating revenue.

For further details on these three key financial ratios, please refer to page 77 of this document which
forecasts the outcomes for each ratio for the next 10 years to 2033.
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 2022
Nota 5 5
Income
Revenue
Racurrent revenue
Fees and charges 3{a) 1,122,308 1,025,448
Sales revenue b 2,761,380 1,348,100
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations e (i} 5,632 668 3,285,291
10,516,356 5,628,840
Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 3e) (i) 413,028 144 316
Other capital Incame 5 288 558 562,515
Total capital revenue GE1,586 T 832
Rental income 177,813 182,057
Interest recedhed 8268 14
Joint Venture BB5.812 BE9,508
Other income 4 165,193 41,276
Total income 12.439,027 TA28 626
Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Empioyee benefits 31 [3,246,255) [2,147,168)
Maferials and services T [4,514,757) [3,751,591)
Firance costs (117 ,642) (49,388)
Depreciation and amortisation 12 (2,111.532) [1,765,850)
Total recurrent expenses "(5,390,285) (8,717,887)
Capital expensas B (814,020) -
Total expanses {10,804,307) [B,717,597)
Met result 1,634,721 {1,289 370)
Other comprehensive incoma
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Increase f (decresse) in asset revaluation surplus 2,236,897 2808173
Taotal other comprehensive income 2,236 BoT 2,808,173
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,874,617 1,518 B03

Tha above slatement showld be read in conjunclion with the accompanying nofes and Sigriffcant Accounling Folicies.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023 Page 45 of 82



Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Financial Position

Az at 30 June 2023
2023 2022
Nota $ $
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents g B,841 449 2,547,730
Fecaivables 10 534 410 358,728
Irventeries 11 42 787 NN
Contract assats 13 166,780 624 770
Lease receivable 14 85,178 78,861
Total current assats T.731 614 3,731,807
Mon-current assets
Lease receivable 14 2,225,885 3,097 144
Invastrnent in [oint venture 23 412 957 412 957
Property, plant and sguipment 12 45,954 316 45.020,555
Rental incomea 48,593 159 48 530 667
Total assats 56,324 773 52,262 4T3
Current labilities
Payables 16 618,048 #59 016
Canfract liabilities 13 3245197 2,284 224
Borrowings 16 3458 401 338 148
Lease liakilites 14 = 55,045
Provisians 17 237,415 289 604
Taotal current liabilitias 4,447,060 1,666,038
Mon-current liabilitias
Payables 15 34,307 50,567
Horrowings 16 2,939,816 3,282,737
Provisians 17 107,426 138 585
Total non-current liabilities 3,087,549 3,471,890
Total liabilities 7.528 609 T.337,928
Met community assets 48 798 182 44 924 544
Community equity
Ageet revaluation surplus 18 20,155,105 17.918.207
Retained surplus/ideficiency) 28,541,058 27,006,335
Total community equity 45595,152 44 924 544
—_—

The above statement showd be read in conjunction with the accompanying nates and Signifficant Accounting Paolicies.
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Asset Retalned Tetal
revaluation Surplus
surplus
MNote
5 ] $

Balance as at 1 July 2022 17,918,207 27 008,336 44 924 544
Met resuit 1,634, 121 1634, 721
Cther comprehensive income for the year

Increase | (decrease) in asset revaluation surphus 19 2,236,857 2,236,837
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,236,897 1,634,721 3871817
Balance as at 30 June 2023 20,155,105 28 541,058 48,796,162
Balance as at 1 July 2021 15,110,034 28,295,706 43,405,740
Met result - {1,289,370) (1,280,370}
Cther comprehensive income for the year

Increase [ ([decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 19 2,808,173 - 2,808,173
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,808,173 (1,288,370} 1,518,802
Balance as at 30 June 2022 17,918,207 27 006,336 44 024 544

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Sighifficant Accouniing Palicies.
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2023 2022

§ 5
Cash flows from operating activities
Raceipts from customers 3,837,070 2,323 345
Payments to suppliers and employess (8,073,683) (6,754 1B0)

(4,236 618} (4 470,435)
Irterest received 8,265 14
Rental income 177,813 182,058
Mo capital grants and contributions 5 870,600 4,955,180
Borrowing costs {117 842} (45 388)
Met cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 24 2,702,423 B17,438
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (G629 205} (2,608,022
Finance lease receipis 14 B0, 223 76,808
Grants, subsidies, contribufions and donations 2,129 881 -
Dividend - JW investment 23 400,000 1,567,183
Met cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities 1,581,008 {964,031)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments made on financs leases (55,0458} (70,672)
Froceeds from bormawngs 4 3,726,611
Ftepa‘yrtmm of hnrmwings. {SM,EE?] (1 DE,?EE}
Met cash inflow (sutflow) from fnancing activities = (3®a7i2) 3,550,213
Met increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents hald 4,293,718 3,203,621
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 2,547,730 (555,892)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 9 5,841 448 2,547,730

Tha above staterment showld be read in conjunclion with the accompampyng noles and Summavy of Sigrilican! Accouning
Palicies.
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

1
1.A

1.8

1.C

1.0

1.E

1.F

1.G

Information about these financial statements

Basis of preparation

Wujal Wigal Aboriginal Shire Council is constituted under the Queenstand Local Govemmend Aot 2009 and is domiciled in Australia.
These general purpese financial statements are for the peniod 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023 and have been prapared in compliance with
the requirements of the Local Governmen! Aot 2009 and the Local Govermment Reguiation 2012

These financial statements comply with Austrafian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board [(AASE). Council is & not-for-profit entity for firancial reporing purpesas and these financial statements comply with
Australian Accourting Standards and interpretations as applicatle o not-for-profit entities.

Thase financial stalemants have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain classes of
property, plant and equipment,

Date of authorisation
The financial statements were authorised for izsue on the date the management cartificate was signed.

New and revised Accounting Standards adopted during the year
Wigjal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Couwncil adopied all standards which became mandatonly affective for annual reporting paricds beginning 1
duly 2022. There were no standards which had an impact on reportad position, performance and cash flows of Council.

Standards issued by the AASE not yet effective

The AASE has issued Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which are not effectiva at 30 June 2023, these standards
hawe not baen adopted by Council and will ba incluged in tha francial statemants an their affective date. Council do not expect
standards issued but not yet effactve to kave a significant impact an the financial statements.

Eatimates and judgemants

Councils make a number of judgements, esbtmates and assumptions in preparing thesa financial statements. These are based on the
best infarmation available to Council at the time, however due to the passage of time, these assumptions may change and therefore the
recorded batances may not reflect the final outcomes, The significant judgements, estmates and assumptions relate ta the fallowing
itarne and spacific information is provided in the relsvant note:

Ravenue - Mote 3

Valuation and depreciatlon of praperty, plant and equipment - Mote 12
Impairmeant of property, plant and equipment - Note 12

Provisions - Mote 17

Conlract balances - Note 13

Valuation of financa leases - Note 14

Cantingent liabilities - Mote 21

Rounding and comparatives
The financial statements are in Australian dellars and have baen rounded (o the nearest $1

Comparative information is stated on the sama basis a5 he prior year,

Taxation

Income of local autherities and public authorties is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for Fringe Banefils Tax and Goods and
Services Tax ('GST). The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as a consolidated asset or
liahility,
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

2 Analysis of Results by Function
{a} Components of Council functions
The activities relating fo the Council's components reported on in Maote 2(b) are as follows. -

Corporate governance

The objective of corparate governance is for Council to be open, accountable, transparent and deliver vaiue for monzy
community outcomes. This function includes strategic and operational planning, marketing and communicalion, sk
management, internal audit, legal and admiristrative support. The Mayor, Councillors and Chief Executive Officer
activifies are included in corporate governance.

Corporate services

Comporate services provides administration, finance and infarmation services across all of council. This function
includes human rescurce management, budget support, financial accounting, and information technology services, The
goal of thiz function is to provide accurate, imely and approprate information 1o support sound decision making and
meet statutory requirements and o provide appropriate services to all of the activities of Council.

Tachnrical services

This function |s responsible for the road transport network, parks and gardens, waste management and the water and
sewerage networks. The objectives are @ ensure the community is sewviced by a high quality and effective road
network, to protect and support the community and natural envirenment by sustainably managing refuss through
provision of rubbish collection and dispesal sarvices, mosguite and other pest management pregrams and o support a
healthy, safe community by sustainably managing the water and sewerage network infrasiructure.

Community services & economic developmant

The goal of community services is to ensure VWujal Wujal is a healthy, vibrant, contemporary and connected
community. Cammunity services provides well managed and maintained community facilities, and ensuras the effective
delivary of cultural, haaith, walfare, envircnmental and recreational services,

This function includes lbrares, kindergarien, enterainment venues, art gallery and cafe, community care services and
facilities and enviranmental licences and approvals.

Building services

This function facilitates the Shire's growth and prosperity through well planned and quality development. The objective
of building services is o ensure the Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire is well designed, efficient and facilitates growth yet
also praserves the character and natural environment of the Shire. This function Includes activities and services related
to town and regicnal planning, maintenancs of Council assets and management of development approval processes.
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
Far tha year ended 30 Juns 2023

2 Analysis of resulls by functlon
{b)  Income and expenses dofined batweon recurring and capltsl are atisibuted 1o tha fallowlng funcions:

Yoar onded 30 June 2023
Functions Gaass program ncome Tiotal GI0§% PIOgram Bapenses Tolal Hal reaud] el Asuis
Racurent Lapral Imeame [ Recament Capital BEpEEe. fram recurrent Resull
Grants Char rands Cdhar operalions
2023 7023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2073 2023 2023 2023 2023
¥ ] H] S £ 5 ¥ 5 5 ] 5
Comorale govemance - 5 - 1 - | ) (Eawszam) 0 e L 52,777
Comasie senices 5,110,533 A4 615 - 268,558 5,663,603 {1,584, 5548] - 11,004,584} 3,430,652 3,688,210 o BE9 432
Technical services 222643 | 2,468,957 413028 « | aioeg3s|  aaoeixm| msmem| moazEaga) miesem| 0 (LEmmg| meanTE
Community services & h B - o II
BOONCATIC “mwm 1,298,352 131,385 - 1,430,758 ['I.EDH.EH]:‘ - {1.803,520) (372,762 (372, 162) 18,128.477
Iﬂuuﬂmwu'im - 2200800 | = 2,209,500 (2,040,812 " I TNEET 160,687 | 160,887 549,338 |
[Tatal 6,637,668 5.124,773 413,028 26,556 12,439,007 [3.950,285) [Bi4,0200  (10.0804,306] 1.761.158 1,634,721 56,324,773 |
Yaoar andod 30 June 2022
Funclons GHOSS program @coira Tatal GCTORS Program pspenies Tolal el fesalt Mt Asgeis
HRacumant Capilal Income Recament Capital BEPENSEE from recurrent Frissult

Grams Other Eranls Oiher operations

FIiFT] 7022 20322 2052 FIrF] FL7] FIiF] FiirF] I r i FIirE] FIF]
- 5 -4 - 3 3 5 ] 5 5 -1 5
Corparate govemance . 80,158 s = 50,154 [GE3, 030 - (BE3,034) (812,875} (B12.875] 62518
Coporsle senices | 206278  dasrse| - | - | asaea| (1480608 | n4sosaEf  210301S[  2103015| 2883327
Technical sarvices 252,204 1,314,045 {58,712) = 1,506,537 {2,759, 203) - (2,766,203 (1,202 554) (1,262 B&E| 24 838,722
Comminity services & : _
ecoramic devalopment H'E.Bﬂl_ ) E.ME} 204,028 _552,515. 1.3&3.2&_7__ (1.656,4200 = (1656 4200 (1178687 [413,153] 18,840,525
Building senices - S5 041 - - s, 041 (2,088, T32) - (2,058 Ta2) (1,403,851) (1,103 831 5627 580
Toital 3,255,201 3,456,503 144 378 882 618 T.426,627 @, 717,957} = [8.717.997) [1.996.202) (1,248 371] 52,252,472

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023 Page 51 of 82



Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

3 Revenue
[a) Fees and charges

Revenue ariging from fees and charges is recognised when or as the performance chbligation i= complated and the customer
receives the benefit of the gaods ! services baing provided.

The performance abligation relates to the specific services which are providad to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases, the customer is required fo pay on arrival, for
example racreation/camping reserns lees. There is no material obligation for Council in relation to refunds or raturms.

2023 2022
S 5
Administration and ulility charges 1,060,382 922 058
Bank and Post Office agency commissions 23,841 37,383
Centrafink commissions 27.038 2B ETT
Other feas and charges 11,037 38,288
Total fees and charges 1,122,308 1,025 448

(b) Sales revenua

Sale of goads revenue is recognised when the customer has taken delivery of the goods. Revenus fram services is recognised
when the service is rendered.

Revenue fram contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with an howrly
charge for use of equipment and employees. This revenue and the associated costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activity based on costs incurred at the reporting date. Where consideration is received for the
senvice in advance it is included in contract liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the period when the senvice is pedormed,
Thers are no confracts in prograss at the year end. The contract wark carried out is not subject to retentions.

2023 022
§ 5

Contracts and recoverable works

Sales Revenue 704,520 421873
Q Build and BAS contract and recoverable warks 1,520,433 441,408
Tatal contracts and recoverabls warks 2,224 953 BE3 D82
Sale of goods

Fuel 398,994 313,082
Art Centre 130,365 126,341
Yorks Private External Hire 7,068 44 955
Total sale of goods 536,427 485,013
Total sales revenus 2,761,380 1,348,100
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Woujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

3 Revenua {continued)
-] Grants, subsidies, contnbutions and donations
Grant income under AASE 15

Where grant income arses from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations
then the revenue is recognised whan control of each parformance obligation is satisfied,

The performance obligations are varied based an the agreement. Paymeant terms vary depending an the terms of the grant,
cash ig received upfront for some grants and on the achievernant of certain payment milestones for others.

Each perfiormance obligation is congidered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflacts the transfer of contral and within
grant agreements there may be some performance obligations where contral transfers at a point in tme and others which have
continuous transfer of contrad gver the fife of the contract

Where control is transfarred over time, genemlly the input methods being either costs or time incurred are desmed to be the
masl approprizte methods to refiect the transfer of benafit,

Grant incorne wnder AASE 1058

Assets arising from grants in the scope of AASE 1058 is recognised at the assets fair value when the asset is recefved.
Council considers whether there are any related lizbility or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard,

Once the assels and liabiitles have been recognised then income is recognized for any remaining assst valus at the time that
the assel is received.

Capital granis

Capital grants received to enable Councl to acguire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment lo identified
spacifications which will be under Councif's control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenue as and when the
obligation to consiruct or purchases is complated.

Far construction projects, this is genersally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropriate measurs of the compleleness of the construction project as thera is no prefit margin.
Where assets are donated or purchased for significantly below fair value, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired
and controlled by the Council.

Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of road works, stormwater, water and wastewsater
infrastructure and park equipment are recognised as revenue when the development becomes "on maintenance” (e, the
Council abtains contral of the assets and bacomes liable for any ongaing mainterance) and thers iz sufficient data in the form
of drawings and plans to determine the approximate spectficatons and values of such asseis, Physical assat contributions
with a value in excess of the recognition threshalds are recognised as non-current assets, Those below the thresholds are
reconded s expenses.

2023 2022
£ %
{i) Operating
General purpose grants 5,113,396 2,055,734
State government subsidies and grants 850,018 G54 457
Commonwesith government subsidies and grants 560,256 545 099
Danations - -
Tetal eperaling 6,632,668 3,255,201
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Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

3
(c)
{ii)

Revenue (continuad)
Grants, subsidies, contrbutions and donations {continued)
Capital

Capital Revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specific projects for the replecement or upgrade of
exisling non-current assets andior investment in new assets. |t also includes non-cash contributions which are usually

infrastructure assets recaived from devalopers,

State government subsidies and grants
Total capital

Timing of revenue recognition of grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

Revenue recognised aver time
Grants and subsidies

Revenue recognised at a point in time
Grants and subsidies

Other income

Jaint Venture Placement Feas
Other

Insurance Recovery

Total ather income

Capital incomea

Gain / loss on disposal of non-current assats

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and egquipment

Less: Book value of propery, plant and eguipment disposed of

Other capital income

Galn on revaluation of finance leases
Less; Logs on surrender of financa leases
Fair value gain on contribution of assets

Revaluations

Revaluation increment of praperty, plant and eguipment reversing
previous revaluation decrement

Total capital income
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2023 2022
% 5
413,028 142318
413,028 144,316
2023 2022
$ 5
786,342 330,648
786,327 430,648
e
2023 2022
5 H
B, 294 558 2 988 958
6,294 556 2,968,359
2023 2022
5 5
52,500 5,000
96,475 36,276
10,218 .
169,193 41,276
2023 2022
5 5
12 s
14 71,7480
= 71,7419
. 268,558 490,766
268,558 490,768
268,558 562,515
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-] Employee beneflts

Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service had been provided by the employee.

2023 2022
Mote $ £

Staff wages and salaries 2,257,131 2,280,710
Councillors’ remuneration 347,288 335,160
Annual, sick and long service leave entitiements 342 702 350,387
Superannuation 22 341 536 41,315

3,288,656 3,317,187
Other emoloyees related expensas - -

3,288,656 3,317,181
Less: Capitalised employes expenses (42,402) (170.,013)
Total employee benelits 3,245 255 3,147,168

The superannuation expense for the reporting pariod = the amaunt of the contribution the Council makss to the
superannuation plan which provides benefits to its employees.

Councillars' remuneration represents salary pald in respect of carrying aut their duties.

2023 2022
Total Council employses at the reporting date: # i
Elected members 5 5
Administration and indoor staff 26 23
Depot and ouldoors staff 22 27
Total full time equivalent employees 8% 55
T Materials and services
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as Council receives goods or sanvices,
2023 2022
5 §
Administration supplies and consumables 885,557 3rv.asT
Audit of annual financial statements by the GAG 127,000 68,293
BAS recoverable expenditure 1,023,112 254,951
Communications and IT Expenses 241213 301,072
Conracters, consultants and servies 24 96T 88,122
Cost of goods sold 324,410 369,969
Housing construction expenses 358 257 1,185 680
Insurances 272,506 165,023
Other materials and services 721,354 583,851
Repairs and maintenance 322 489 233,661
ehicle and plant operating costs 173,402 142,923
Total materials and services 4,514,757 3,751,501
Total audit fees quoted by the QAO relating to the 2022/23 financial siatements aie $127,000 (2022, ST15.0000
] Capital expenses 2023 2022
Revaluation decrement in P&L § 1
Land 12 30,302 -
Other Infrastruciure - -
Tatal Revaluation decrement in P&L 30302 -
Other capital expenses
Lass on revaluation of finance leases 14 TRITI1& =
TRITE -
Taotal capital expenses 814,020 =
— ]
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3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the siaterment of cash flows includes cash on hand, all cash receipted but not barked at year
end, and depasita heldd at call with financial institutions.

Mobe 2023 2022
5 5
Cash at bank and on hand 6,841,449 2,547,730
Balance per Staterment of Financial Positicn 6,841,449 2,647 730
Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 6,841,449 2,547, T30

Councll is exposed to credit risk through its mvestments i the QTC Working Capital Facility, Warking Capital Facility depesits
have a duration of one day and all investmeants are required to have a minimum credd rating of "A-", the likalihcod of the
counterparty nat having capacity to mest its financial commitments iz low,

Cash and cash equivalents 5,841,443 2,547 729
Lass: Externally imposad restrictions 3] 3,245,187 2,284 724
Lass: internally imposed restrictions () T35 623 735623
Total unrestricted cash 2,850,623 (472,117}

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of intemal and external restrictions that limit amounts available
for diseretionary or future use.

(i) Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at reporting date relate to the following cash assats:

Unzpent govemment grants and subsidies 3,245,197 2284 224
Total externally imposed restrictions on cash assets 3,245,197 2,284 224
(i) Internal allocations of cash al reporting date:
Constrained Works Reserve 624,245 624,245
Constrained Contnbutions Reserve 111,378 111,378
T35.623 735623
10 Receivables

Receivables are amounts owed o Council at year end. Recaivables are measured at amortised cost which approximates fair
value at reporting date. Trade debtors are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed
purchaselcontract price. Seftlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date.

Debts are regulary assessed for collectability and allowance is made, where appropriate, for impairment. All known bad debts
wene written-off at 30 June. If an amount is recoverad in a subsequant period it is recognised as revenue,

2023 2022
$ 3

Current

Trade debtors 358,585 103,234
Lese: |ass allowanos (10,561} (7,434)
Trade debtars net 348 426 85,800
Other debtors 245 985 262 928
Total currant receivahlas 584 410 358,728

Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosad in the following table:

Mot past due 252,543 60,238
Past due 31-60 days 279,390 3B,589
Past dus 61-80 days 1,573 484
More thar 90 days 71,465 11,368
Trade Debtors 504,871 110,668
Impaired {10,561) (7 434)
Total — _ 584,410 103,234
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10 Receivables {continued)

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual chiigations. These
obligations arise pAncipally from the Council's receivables fram customers,

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date for recaivables is the gross carrying amount of those assets. Mo
collateral is held as secunty.

Wujal Wujal Abariginal Shire Council conducts an assessment of individual debts to determine expected credit losses. Based
an the compositien of Ceuncil's debtars, and controls in place relating to credit approval and monitering, the is a immaterial
risk of impainment of Cauncil's debtars,

1 Inventories
Stores, raw materials and cther gocds held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and include,
where applicable, direct material, direct labour and an appropriate portion of varabde and fixed overheads.
Inventaries held far distribution are:
- goods to be suppiliad at nil or neminal charge:

- goods to be used for the provision of services at nil or nominal charge
These goods are valued at cost, adjusted, where applicable, for any loss of service potential,

2023 2022
5 %
Fuel stores 38 419 35 451
Flant and equipment stores 4,387 15,266
Total inventories 43787 51,717
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12 Property, plant and equipment accounting policies

Heme of plant and equipment with a total value of lass than $5,000, and infrastructure assets and buildings with a tolal
value of lsss than $10,000 are treated as an expanse in the year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are capitalisad.

{a)  Acguisition of assets
Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost.

ib) Measurement

Property plant and equipment assats are initially recorded at cost. Subseguently, each class of property, plant and
aquipment is stated &t cost or fair value less, where applicable, any sccumulated depreciation and accumulated
mpaiment loss.

Caosl is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including
freight in, archilect's fees and engineering design fees and ail other establishment costs,

Direct labaur and matertals and an appropriate proportion of labaur ancasts incumad In the acqulsition or constructian af
asasts are also ncjuded in their cast,

Froperty, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value,

(e} Depreciation
Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited wseful life. Depreciation on other property, plant and egummment assets is
calculated on a straight-ine basis so as to write-off the net cost or revalued amount of each depreciable asset, less its
esiimated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Council. Management believe that the straight-
line basis apgropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council assets.

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition er, in respect of intemally constructed assets, from the ime an asset is
completad and commissionead ready for use,

Where assets have separately dentifiable components fhat are subject to regular replacement, these compaonents are
assigned useful fives distinct fram the asset to which they retate. Any sxpenditure that increases the onginally assessed
capacity or service potential of an assel is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated owver the remaining
usaful life of the zzset ta the Council,

Depreciation mathods, estimated useful ives and residual values of property, plant and equipment assels are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes In the patterm of consumption,
physical wear and tear, technical of commercial obsolescance, of management intentions, The condition assessments
performed as part of the annual valuation process for assels measured at wiitten down current replacement cost are used
to estimate the useful lives of these assels at each reporting date, Detalls of the range of estimated useful lives for each
class of asset are shown in the table on page 17

Kay judgements and estimates:

Management reviews its eshimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets al each reporting date, based on the expectsd
utility of the assets, Uncertainties in thesa estimatas ralate to tachnical or physical cbsalescance that may change the
utilsty of infrastiicture assets.

(d} DOGIT and other land
The Council is located on land assigned to it under a Deed of Grant in Trust (DOGIT) under Section 34) of the Land Act
1994,

The land |s administered by the Department of Natural Resources and Mines and the Council has restricted use of this
land for the banefit of shire inhabitants. Tha DOGIT land has not beaen takan up in the Council's assets as its value cannet
be reliably measured.

Cauncil alsa holds additional freehold land gutside jts OGIT and Lacal Governmant area, in the township of Ayton and the
ared of Degarra. This land = measured at fair value.
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iz Property, plant and equipment accounting policies

e} Impairment
Each non-current physical asset and group of assels is assessed for indicators of impairment annually, If an indicator af
possible impaimment evists, the Councll determines the assel's recoveranle amount Any amount by which the assat's
carmying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and s value In use,

An impairment loss is recognised as an expenss in the Statement of Comprehansive Incoma, unless the asset is camied at
a revalued amount. When the assst is measured st a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset
revaluation surphus of the ralavant class to the extent available

Where an impairment loss subsequently reversss, the carrying amaount of the assel is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the Increased carrying amount does not excead the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss bean recognised for the asset in prior years., A reversal of an impairment loss (s
recogmiised as income unless the asset is carried at a revaluad amount, in which case the raversal of the impalrmeant lass
Is trzated as a revaluation surplus increasa.

{n Valuation
(i} Waluation processes
Mon-current physical assets measured ak fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each class
of asaet doss not materially differ from its fair value st the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging mdependent,
professionally qualified valuesrs to determine the fair value for each class of property, plant and equipment assats at least

once every 5 years. This process invalves the valuer physically sighting a representative sample of Coundil assats across
all asset classes and making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection.

In the intervening years, for the valuation of the land, buildings and infrastructure asset classes, managemant angage
indzpendent, professicnally quaiified valuers to perform a "desktop” valuation. A desktop valuation involves management
providing updated information to the valuer regarding additicns, deletions and changes in assumpticns such as useful life,
residual value and condition rating. The valuer then detesmines suitable indices which are applied to each of these asset
classes,

Ary revaluation increment arizing on the revaluation of an assat iz credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation
surplus, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decremant for the class previously recognised as an expense. A
decrease In the carying amount on revaluation is charged a3 an expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in
the revaluation surplus of that asset class.

On revaluation, accumulated deprecialion is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset
and any change in the estimate of remalning useful life.

Key judgemenis and astimates:

Some of the Council's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. n estimating the fair
value of an asset of a liabilty, the Council usas market-ohservable data to the extent it is available and other inpuls as
MEcESEany.

In accordance with AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement, fair value measuremants as categorised on the fodowing basis:
- Fair value based on quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiltias (Level 1};

- Fair value based an inpuls that are directly or indirectly observable, such as prices for similar assats, for the asset or
lizbility (Level 2);

- Fair value bazed on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (Leval 3).

There were no transfers between levels of the hierarchy during the year.
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12 Property, plant and equipment sccounting policles |Cumntinued)
fll) Valuation techalques used to derive fair values Tor lovel 3 valuations

Assot class and falr]  Valuation L":' .
value hierarchy approsen n:.mpru:- ":1::! Valuer engaged Key assumptions and inputs Interim revaluation ireatments
Land [level 2 & 3| Market 30 June 2021 [australis Assel Where an cbeervatia markel % Council land a5sets o ne identifipd, Fair Value was measured oy way of 2 Markat Approach (Level [Councl has engaged A ustralis Assat Advisary Graupto undemake
Advisory Group 2], ubilising sale pricas of camparable properties after sdjusting foe dffarencas kay allribubes of the propery. such as spe. Wihare g & deskiop assessment for ihe year ended 30 June 2023, Based
signicant adusiment was requircd batween Ihe sale prices of comparstle properiss, Far Value was measured by way ofa Maria: on Ihis aacesament, Coundl have applied indexation of -3 4% i
Approach (Leved 3. The mest significant input inlo this valiation approach is price per square makna, thig class.
Basildings {level 3) Curan! 30 Juna 2021 [Australis Asgat A0 WWAST buildng and olher infraginelora assats are consdered ol a spacialist nature and did rof mest Ihe critens J67 & Markel Coungil hasengages Ausiralis Asse Achvisory Groupio wderishe
replacemant Advigary Group approach, and Fair Value was measwrad on Ihe basis of g Cost Approach (Level 3] Each asset has baan diseggregated inle sanificant | & deskiop assassment for tha yaar endad 3 June 2023 Based
oo Lompanands which exhibil different useful lives. For example, siruciura, roof, fitoul and senices, Uselu lives ans basad on typical asset |on Ihis assessment, Council have applied indexation of § 4% o
Iecycies based on pasl expenence and induslry berchmarks. The most signiicand input inka this valustion approach ig unit rates far this class
ConEtiection a5 ab the compoehensive revaluaton gabe (grawn Tiom indusiry standard cost puldes, cosls fiowm recant Courneil projecis)
Cther curraet W dumse 2021 JAwisiralis Assal Assel dimensions, canstruction maledals and standards drive the resultng calculstan of replacament cosl which 1s thee adjusbed for Councl has engaged Austialis Assel Advisory Gioup Oundariake
Infrasiructure {level| replecement \ugvizory Group dfferancas in key alributes such as assal condilion, physical and economic obsolegeanse. The remaining useful ife has been 8 deskicp assessment for ihe year ended 30 Jume 2023, Basad
3 cost detetmined with regard io prysical eteriaration, and funclional and econcemic shsolescence and managament and the valuer's an lhis assessment, Council have spplied indexation of § 5% to
expactslion of remaining service potenlisl of Ihe assel, his class,
Watber Carrent 0 June 2021 |Ausiralis Assal Each sssel has been disagoregaled into signincanl COMpOnanis which axnibil different wseful buas. Far example pipework, siruciores,  |Gaun)| has engaged Ausiralis Assel Lovisory Groop 1ounderake
Indrastructure (level| regplacement Achvispry. Group pumps &% alectrical comperenls. Useful lives are basad on, lypical asset Macycles based on pasl experence and induslry banchmarks la deskiop ssassement for the ye&' enoed 30 June 2023 Based
3) cost The most significan input inta Ihis valuation asproach 15 unit rales for corsiruclion as at te comprenensive revaluation date (drawn from (on this asgeagment, Coundl have applicd indexalion of 6 55% o
induslty standard cost guides, cosls from recent Caunil projects). Asset dimensions, consiruction materials and standards drive lhe [inis class.
resdiling calculation of replacement costwhich is then adjusied for d*erences jn key aftributes such as asset condilion, physical and
ECONUMIC Obasiescenca, Tha remeEning useullile has basn delermined with ragerd o physical delericration, and funclional and
acanomis obsthescence, ang maragermant and the valusr's expaclalisnal rernaining eenvice potential of the assat Whera Sile
inspeclions are nol possble the remaining useful il fe was calculabad on an age basis aftar takingints consideration curent and planned
mainienance records,
Sewerage Curmant 30.Jume 2021 [Austalis Assel Each assel has Deen disaggrageled inta signiican Components which exwbit @flarant oseial Bvas. For CREMPlE mains, manholes. pumps Councll Nas engagad Auslrelis ASseTAdvisary Group 1o undariake
Infrastrecture [level] replacemant (Adwisory Sroup ang eleclrical componenls, Usetu lives are basad on lypical Basel lifecycles based on pas| axpenance and Indusiry banchmarks, The 8 deskiop assessment for the year anted 30 June 2023, Bassd
3 vost Mogt significent mpul intn MIE valualion Jpproach 1s unit rates far contruclion as al the comprehensive revElElion data (drawn rem on [his assessmeni, Council have applied indexation of 5.95% to
industy standard cost guides, costs fom recen Council projects] Azsel dimensions, construction materials and slandards drive Ine his class,
1e=iling cakoulation of rplacemant cost which ks than adjusted for diferances in key atiribubes swch &5 asset condiion, physical and
economic chsslescence, The remaining useful kfe has been determinad with regard ta physical geterioration, and funelional ana
acanoimic chsolescance, and managemenl and the valuers expectation of remang senice pobertial of e asset Where iia
inspections are nol possible the remaning usel e was calculaled on an age basis afer iaking into consideration curenl and planned
mainbenance records,
Roads Netwark Curard 30 June 2021 [Ausisalis Assel Foad gssets are differeniial=d by physical chamclenstes [Le. Road, Culverls, Floadways, Fontpams, ferb & Chanmal), Road S20ments |G ouncl hes engapad Ausiralis Assel Advisory GHoup | undefaks,
(b 3) placement Advisary Group aie Men camponendlsed inio formabion, pavement snd saal (whare apalicable). Uselul lves are based on lypical assat lifecycles based onf a deskbop assessment Tar te year ended 30 Jure 2023. Based
oost [past Expanence and industry berchmancs, Thi mast signiticant ingut inta this valuation BOPICACH 15 unit rates for constuction agat the | onihis assessment, Council have apphed indexation of 8.97% 1o
comprehonsive revakualion date (drewn fram industry standard cost guides, costs from recent Coundl projecls). Asset dimensions, s class
construction Mateniats end standands drive tha resulling <akeulation of replseament cost which is hen adjusted far differences | key
afirieates Such as esset condilion, physical and econamic ohsolascance, The remaning useful §fe has been dedermined wish regard 1o
Phyaical oatanioratan, and functonal and essnomic absolesosnce, and menagemen and 1he valuers expecistion of ramamng senice
poiemial of the 85881 Where site Inspeclions ane nal possible the remairng ussfd iife was calculated an an age basis afar taking nko
consideration curenl and planned mantenance records,
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13 Contract balances
Where the amounts billed o customers are based an the achievement of varous milestones established in the contract, the amounts
recognised as revenue in a given perisd do not necsssarnily coincide with the ameunts billed fo or cartified by the customer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by fransferring a promised good or senvice to the customer before the cusiomer pays
gensideration or before payment b5 due, Council presents the work in progress as a conbract asset, unbess the rights 1o that amount of
sensideration are uncondiional, in which case Council recognises a receivable.

When an amount of consideration is received from a customer § fund provider grior to Council transfening a good or service o the
customer, Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract [Eability

023 2022
5 ]
(a) Contract assats 166,780 634,770
(L] Contract liabilites
Furds recajved wplront o construct Council controlled assets 1,841 841 TBE 574
Mon-capital perfarmance obligations not yet satisfied 1,303,355 1,495 650
3,245 197 2,284,224
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract iability balance at
the beginning of lhe year
Funds to construe! Councl controlled asssts 205 117 931,564
Non-capital perfarmance obligations 758,918
1,055 236 931,584

Satisfaction of contract liabilites
The contract lisbiliies in relation to capital grants relate to funding recelved prior 1o the work. being performed since revenue is
recognised as Councll constructs the assets. Councll expects to recognise the contract liability as income in the nest 1 -2 years.

Signifciant changes in contraci llabilfies
Significant movements in coniract assels and confract liabilities that have accurred during the year relate ta change in the timing af
the work and significant monies received in advance, in paricular in relation 1o WaQ and QRA projects.

14 Leaasen
Council as a lessee
Council haza leases in place sver plant and eqepmant, specifically a loader (2022: grader and loader). The contract expired in 2023,
Periedic payments ocour in accordance with the finance lease schedule,

Where Councll assasses Inat an agreement confains a lease, a right-of-use asset and lease liability is recognised on the incaption of
the: lease. Councd does not separate lease and non-lease components for any class of asseds and has accounted for lease payments
as a singie componant,

The right-of«use assel is measured using the cost modal whare cost en initial recagnition comprizas: e lease labibty, initial direct
costs, prepald lease paymenls, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any beass inceniives recsived, The right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the lzase term an & straight-line basls and assessed for Impaimaent in accordance with the impairment of asset
accounting policy.

The lease llablity is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commeancemant of the lease, The
discount rate is the rate implicit in the leass, however where this cannol be readily determined then the Council's incremental
porrowing rate for a sirmilar lerm with sirmalar security is used.,

Exceplions fo laase sccounling

Council has apphied the exceptions o lease accounting for both short-term leases (e, leases with a term of less than or equal to 12
manths) and leases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expensa on a straight-
line basis over the lease lem.

Leases af significently below marke! value / cancasslonary leases

Council has elected to measure the right-of-wse asset arsing from the concessionary leases at cost which is based on the associated
Ilease Eability at inifial recagnition,

Right of vse assels

Lease assets are ncluded within Mote 12.
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14 Leases (Continuad)
Lease fabiiles

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the lease liabilties based on contraciual cashilows and therefore the amounis will not
be thie same as the recognised leasa lability in the siatameant of inancial position.

023 022
5 5
Mot later than one year - 55,045
Later than one year but not later than five years = o]
Total per staterment of financhal position - 55,046

Council 85 & lessor

When council s & lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease al inceplion date, based on whether
substantially all of the rsks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transfemed to the |essee. If the risks and
rewards have been transfemed then the lease is classifisd as a finance keasa, olherwisa it is an oparaling leasa,

If the lzase contains lease and non-lease compenents then the nen-lease components are accounted for in accordance with AASE
15 Revanua from Confracts with Cusfomers.

The lease income ks recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease lem

Finance leases:

Couneil has lkeasad 82 (2022 - 83) dwellings as lessor to the Queansiand Govemment for 40 years, The average lease payment per
dwelling in the current year was 333014 (2022 - 5367), in addition, there was alse approximately $10,806 (2022 - $9,300) in service
charges applied per property. As the gross lease payments are insufficient to cover the fair value (depreciated replacement cost) of
the leased praperlies, ihers it no interest rate implicit in the leases and therefore no finance income will arise fram the leases, The
leases are racognised al the present value of the expected futura laasa payments receivable, excluding service charges [Le. NPV
method is used). Gains on revaluation of finance lease assets are recognised as "other income™ when the cashflows diminish and the
dizcount rate declines year an year. Convarsaly, in the future, when the discount rate incraases and the cashflows diminish, losses
on finance lease assel revaluations will be recognized as “othar axpenses”,

023 mnzi

Leasea receivables
Curmrent BE.178H FB.BE1

BE, 178 TH.B51
— — _— — ———
Laase recalvables
Non-currant 2,225 885 3.097,144

2,225,885 3,057,144
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14 Leasss (Continued)
Finance leases {conlinved):
A reconciliation betyeen the gross investment in the lease and the fair value of lease payments s as follows:

2023 022

$ §
Gross minimum lease paymants receivahle:
Mot later than one year a8, 178 78,861
Later than one year but nat later than five years 344 713 115,445
Later than five years 2,198 186 2,081 327

2630077 2485 634
Add: Estimated contingent rent 2 610,624 4,539,977
Less: Prasant vaiue adjusiment {2,928 538) (3,845 608)
Fair value of lsase paymeants 2,312,063 3,176,005
Tha fair value of lease payments are recaivable as follows:
Mot latar than cne year BE, 178 TR BE1
Later than ona year but not later than five years 337,160 27,797
Later than five years 1,888,725 2,769,347

2,312,063 3,176,005
—

Movemants in finance leases were as follows:

Opening balanca 376,008 3,181,085
Lass; Lease receipts (B 223) (TEE10)
Gain (Loss) on revaluation (TE3,T18) 71,743
Clasing balance 2,312,063 3,176,005

The calculation of fair value has included an estimate of average annual CP1 increases of 4.25% for 2022023 (2022 6%) and a
discount rate of 5.18% for 2022/23 (2022: 4.38%).

Thera iz nll unearned finanze income, unguarantesd residual values acemuing to tha benafit of Councll, sccumutated allowance for
uncofectible minimum lease payments receivable recognised as income apalizable fo the leasas, There is, howsver, a confingent
rent recognized of $2 610,624 (2022: 34,530 977} which is the difference between nominal rents and consumer prics indexalion of
rents.

18 Payablos

Cradilors are recognised when goods or services are received, at Lhe amownt owed. Amounts owing are unsecured and are
gencrally sattled on 30 day terms.

A liability for salares and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid al the reporling dale al cumant pay rates in
respect of employees' services up to that date. This liability represents a curent accrued sxpense

2023 2022
E $
Currant
Accounis payable 785 119,685
Accrpad axpanses 456, 750 515,300
Cther credifors and accruals 120,511 160,027
618,046 399,018
Mon-Curremt
Oiher creditors and accruals 34,307 50,567
a4 307 50,567
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16 Borrowinge
Bormowings are inltially recognised at fair value plus any direcily atiributable ransaction cosls. Thereafter, they are measured at
ameortised cost, Principal and interest repayments are made guartery in amears.

All barrowings are in 3A denominated amounts and interes! is expensed as it acorues. No interest has been caplfalised durdng the
curmant or comparative reporting period. The expected final repayment date is 15 February 2032,

2023 2022
H $
Currant
Cument Loans - QTC 346,401 338,148
3456 401 338,148
MNon-Currant
Mon-Curent Loans - QTC 2,839 818 3,282 737
2,539,876 3,282,737

Tha QTC loan market value at the reporiing date was §3,022, T08.02, This represants the value of the debt if Councll repaid it at that
date. Az It is the inlention af Council to hald the debt forf its tarm, no provision is required to ba made in these accounts.

Mo assels have been pledged as security by the Council far any Fabilities.

There has been no defaulls or breaches of the loan agreement during the 2023 financial year,

17 Provisions

Liahilities are recognised for employee benefs such as annual and long service leave in respect of services provided by the
efmployées up to the reporting date. The hability is calculated using the present value of remuneéralion raies that will be paid when the
liability is expected 1o be settled and includes related on-costs,

As Council does not have an upconditional mght to defer settlerment of the annual leave beyond twelve months after the repering
date, annual leave |s classified as a cumrent liability.

A llakllity for leng service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated fulure cash outllows lo be made in respect af
sefvices provided by employees up fo the reporting date. The valus of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected
fulure increases in those rates and includes relaled employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probablity of the
employee remaining in Council's employment or other associated employment which would result in couwncil being reguired to mest
the liability, Adjusiments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit eamed to dale, and he result is discounted to
prasant value. The intarest rates attaching to Commaonwealth Govemment guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to
discount the astimated future cash outflows to their present values.

Where employees have mel the prarequisite length of service and Councit does not have an uncondilional fight to defer this lakhility
beyond 12 months long service leave is classified s a cument Rability. Ctherwise it is dassified as non-current.

2023 2022
% 5

Current
Annual leave 127,583 175,635
Lang service leave 105,832 113,969

237,415 2859 604
Non-currant
Long sarvice leave 107 428 138,586

107 426 138,566
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16 Borrowings
Bormowings are inltially recognised at falr value plus any direcily affributable ransaction cosls. Thereafter, they are measured at
amerlised cost, Principal and interest repayments are made guartery n amears.

All borrowings are in $4A denominated amounts and interest is expensed as it accrues. No interest has been capllalised dusing the
currant ar comparative reporting period. The expected final repayment date is 15 Febmuarny 2032,

2023 Wz2
L 5
Currant
Cumrent Loans - QTG 346 401 338,148
346,401 338,148
MNon-Currant
Mon-Current Loans - TC 2,830 816 3282737
2,539,816 3,282,737

The QGTC loan market value at the reporting date was §3,022 708.02, This represants the value of the debt if Councll repaid it at that
date, Az It is the intention of Council ta hold the dekbt for its term, no provision is required to be made in thase accounts,

Mo agsels have been pledged as security by the Council for any FEbilities,

Thers has been no dafaulls of breaches of Ihe loan agreement duding the 2023 financkal yaar,

17 Provisions

Liabilities are recognised for employes benefs such as annuval and long service leava in respect of services provided by the
empioyees up to the reporting date. The hability is calculated using the present value of remuneraiion raies that will be paid when the
liability is expecied 1o be seftled and includes related on-cosls.

As Council does not have an uncondiiional mght to defer settlement of the annual leave beyond twelve menths after the reporting
date, annual l=ave |s classified as a curent liability.

A llakliity for leng service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash cutflows fo be made in respact of
sefvices provided by emplayees up to the reporting date. The valus of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected
fulyre increases in thess rales and includes relaled employee on-costs. The estimates are adjuested for the probablity of the
employee remaining in Council's employment or ofher associated employment which would result in cosncil being reguired to mast
the liability. Adjusiments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit eamed to date, and the result is discounied to
prasant value. The interest rales attaching to Commaonwealth Govemment guaranteed securities at the reporting dale are used to
discount the estimated future cash outflows o their present value,

Where employess have mel the prerequisite length of service and Council does not have an unconditional right to defer this Tlability
beyond 12 months long sarvice leave is classifiad as a current Kability. Ctherwise il Is dassified as non-curfent.

2023 2022
5 3

Gurrent
Annual leave 127,583 175,835
Leng servica leave 109,832 113,989

237 415 280 804
MNon-currant
Long sarvice leave 107,426 138,586

107,428 138 566
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20 Transactions with related parties [continued)
(B} Transactions with other related parties

Other related parties include the closa family members of KMP and any entities controlled or jeintly controlled by KMP ar their close
family members. Close family members include a spouse, child and depandent of a KMFP or their spouse.

Details of ransactions between councll and other refated parties are disclosed below:
Details of transactions 2023 2022
& [
Employee expenses of close family members of KMP (5 employees, 20220 3) 243 057 211,528
{1 All close family membears of KMP were employed through an arm's length process. They are pald in accordance with the award for

the job they perform.
{c} Transactions with partias ever which Council has significant contral

In 2013 Enterprise Management Group, Hope Vale Foundation, Gungarde Community Abariginal Corporation and Wujal Wujal
Aboriginal Shire Council entared into a Jaint Venlure Agreement to work fogether to deliver services under the Federal Govemment's
Remote Jobs and Communities Program (RJCP). Hope Yale Aboriginal Shire Gouncil and Ang Ngarra Aborginal Gomporation aro
Assoclate Members of the Joint Venture, The Joint Veniure is structured as an unincarporated collsberative venture for the purpose
of providing the RJCP sarvices, All venture paricipanis have an egual mterest in the Joint Venture. Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire
Council s entitled to 25% of net profif from the cperafion of the Joint Vemnture. 1t is also liable for 25% of any losses throughout the

Joint Venture, Council Iz entitled to two members an the Board out of eighi

Details of transactions 2023 2022
=== F §
My Pathway (t'a Enterprise Management Group)
- Share of profit 726,308 BE1,754 |
- Disbributions received [ralating o current year share af profit) 400,000 BE1, 784
- Distributions receivad [relaling 1o previous years) 100,000 635,389
- Sales (at arms-length) 62,500 5,000

21
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Further information about the Jeint Veniure can be fousd in Note 23 o the Financial Slatements.

(d) Qutstanding balances with related parties

Tha following balances are sutstanding al the end of the reporiing peried In refation lo fransactions with related parties:

Amounts owed by KMP and other related panties as at balance date totalled $1,185.82 (2022 $60). There were no amounts awing to
KMP and other relaled parties at balance date.

(o) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclozed

The majonty of people who are related pariies of Cowncil live within the Wujal Wujal Aborginal Shire Community. Therafore an a
regular bagis ordinary cillzen (ransactions occur between Councik and its related parties. The payment by community residents of
utility charges and for sales of goods of goods and services are considered o be an ardinary cilizen ransaction.

Council has not included these types of transactions in its disclosure as they are made on the same terms and conditions available to
the general public.

{f) Loans, guarantees and commiimeants toffrom related parties

Council deas not make loans to or receive lozns from related parfies. Mo guaraniess have bean provided. Council does not have any
contractual commitments with related parties,

Contingant liabilitins
Detalls and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabiliies are as follows:

Local Government Mutual

The Council is a member of the [ocal governmeant mulual liability selinsurance pool, LGM Quesnsland. In the event of the pool being
wound up or it is unable o meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accumulated deficit will be met by
the individual pool members in e same proporlion as their contibution is to the total pool contributions in respect 1o any year that a
deficit arises.

As at 30 June 2022 the fnancial statements raporied an accumulated surphus and it is not anticipated any Eabdity will arise.

Local Government Workcare

Thea Council is a member of the Queensland local government warker's compensalion self-insurance scheme, Local Government
Workcare. Under this scheme tha Council has provided an indemnity towards a bank guarantes to cover bad debls which may
remain should the sell msurance cence be canceiled and there are insufficient funds available to cover outstanding liabilities. Only
the Queensland Govemnmment's workers compansation authonty may cafl on any part of the guarantee should the above
circumstances arise. The indemnity amount provided by Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council a5 at 30 June 2023 in relation to the
Local Government Woerkcare Bank Guarantes is $70,837.07,
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2 Superannuation
Council contrbutes to LGIASuper (the Scheme) at the rate of 12% for each permanant employes. LGIASuper is a multi-
employer plan as defined in Australian Accounting Standard AASE119 Employee Benefits. The Schemea has a number of
glements including a defined benfits fund and an accumulation benefits fund. Council does not have any employees who are
members of the defined benefits fund and sc iz not exposed to the obligations, assets or costs associated with these funds.
Council has empioyees who are members of the acoumulation benefits fund. The Scheme is managed by LGIASuper Trustee
as trustee for LGIASuper frading as BrighterSuper.

Hote 2023 2022
$ $
The amaunt of superannuation contributions paid by Wujal Wujal B 341 536 341,315
Abariginal Shire Council to the superannuation scheme in this period
for the benefit of employees was:

23 Joint venture

The Council has a 25% (2022 - 25%) joint venture interast in Cook RJUCP Joint WVenture, the principal activity of which is to
provide delivery of services under the Remote Jobs and Communities Program in the Coostown region. Cook RGP Joint
Venture's principal place of business is C- My Pathways, 84-88 Cook 5t, Caims, Quesnsland. In accordance with ownership
interesis Council holds 25% veding rights in the joint venturs,

Councl has determined that this joint armangement is a joint venture under AASE 11 Joint Arangements and accounts for this
investmeant wsing the equity method, Under the equity mathod the investrmant is inilialy recognised at cost and is adjusted
aach year to recognise Councll's share of the accumulated working capital resarve. Council's share of movements in other
comprehensive incoma of the venture are recognised in other comprehensive income. Distributions raceived at recognisad in
the pericd to which they relate, and an adjustment made to dvidends receivable at the end of the period,

Cook RJCP Jomnt Venture is a consartium of 4 organisations whosa aim is to provide empleyment oppartunities for indigenous
people. There is no contractual or ofher arangement, or circumstances which indicate tha! councll, or any of the joint
vanturars, have righis to the assets or cbligations for the liabilities of the joint venture.

The fallawing information has baen extractad frorm Cook RJCP Jeint Venture dralt financial statements.

2023 2022
$ $

Revenue & 203,658 f,956,760
Expanses 5,298 41%) (3,429 583}
Prafit or loss fram continuing operations 2,905,237 3,527 177
Post-tax profit or loss from discontinued operations - =
Profit (loss} for the year 2,905,237 3.52T 177
Other comprabensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income far the year 2905237 3,527 17T

The movernant in the carrying amount of the Council's investment in the joint venture is as follows:

Carrying amount at the baginning of the financial year 412,857 403,783
Funds confrubuted - -
Share of profit {loss) 725,309 8a1,794
Adiustment to carryirg amount of joint veniune - 89,174
Distributions receivable (326,3089) -
Distributions received (4040,000) (381, 724)
Carrying amount at the end of financial year 412,957 412,957
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24 Reconclliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow
{outflow) from operating activitias

2023 022
] $
Nk result 1,634,721 (1.288,370)
Non-cash itarms:
Dapreciation and amortsation 12 2,111,632 1,769,850
Revaluation adjustments in P&L 5,812 545463 (4890, 7686)
Gainfloss on revaluation of finance leases 14 - {71,748)
Other non-cash fransactions in PEL 58 976 81,080
Profit retained in joint venture 23 - (RG9S, E08)
2,716,071 418807
Investing and development activilies:
Capital grants, subsidies and confributions 5 {2,128,991) =
Distributions received from joint venture 23 {400,000} -
[2,529,991) -
Changes In operating assets and labilities:
{Increase) decrease in receivables (235,682) (90,880}
{Increase) decrease in confract assets 527,981 202,923
{Increaseldecraases in inventary 8,330 52,451
Increasal{decrease) in payables (297 230) 35,224
Increase/{decrease) in contract labilites 260,973 1,352,660
Increasa/{decrease) in provisions (83,350} {64,376}
Ba1 632 1488 002
Met cash inflow from operating activities 2, 702 423 617,439

-y —— ]

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023 Page 70 of 82



Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023

25  Ewants after the reporing parod
Thera were no material adjusting avenls aftar balance dale.

268  Financial instruments and financial risk managemant
(a2} Fimancial assats and financial liabilities
Council's aclivilies expage il 1o a varety of financial risks including credit rigk, liquidity fsk and market rishk.

Rizk managemen! framevark
Councl is responsible for the establishment and owersight of the risk managemeant framework, logether with developing and monitoring rsk
managerment pokcies.

Courdl approves policies for overall isk management, as wall a5 spacifically for managing credit. loguidty and market rsk. The councifs nsk
managemsant policies are eslablished ho idently and analyse the dsks faced. fo set appropriate fmils and conirols and o monibor these risks and
adharence against thase fmits. Council aims to manage volatiliy to minimize potential adverse affects on the linancial parformance of the Council

Council does not entar inte denvatives.

{&) Cradit risk
Credit risk 15 lhe risk of financial koss if a counterparty fo 2 Franclal instrument fails o mest s conlraciual ebligations. Thesa ooligations anse
principally from the Cowncl's receivables fram customars,

Exposunes lo credil risk i managad through regular enalysis of credit counterparty ability bo mest paymant okbligations.
Mo colleteral s held as security refating 1o the fnancial assels hald by Counci,

The carryng amdunts of financial assels at the and of the reporting pericd represent the maximum exposura to cradit risk for Councl.

(e} Ligubdity fak
Liquidity risk is the nsk thal Council will encounter difficulty in meeling he obEgations associated wilh s Tnandial abilities thal are setilad by
delvering cash or ancthar financmal assat,

Councile approach B managing Sguldity = 12 ensure, as far as possible, thal it will have sufficient higuidity to meaet s Babiltias when (hay ane due,
under bath namrma and stressed condilions, without unaccaptable losses or Asking damage to Council's reputation,

Council is moposed io lquidity nsk through its nomal course of business and through s barmowings with QTS
Council manages is exposure o lguidity nsk by malmlaining suficient cash deposits, bath sharl and Jong e, b eater for unexpected vilatility in
chsh flows. These facililies are disclosed m Note 8.

The follzwing tabbe sets aut the liquidity risk in ralafian to financial Fabilities {sxcluding lease Rabiliies - refer nota 14) held by Councl. I represents
the remairing conbactual cashflows (principal and interest) of fnancizl liabilites at the end of the reporting paned, excuding the impact of netting

agreemens;
0t 1 year 1o B yoars Orver 5 yoars Tnh::::]ﬁ“l Carrying amount
¥ ¥ ¥ § H

023

Trade and ather payahles 518,045 34307 = 652 353 652 353
Loans - 3TC 423,484 1,699 934 1,549,109 3,661,531 3286278

40,5 4 2 549 1049 | 113 BRE ] ]

2022

Trade and other payables 895,016 50,8567 - 948, 583 549 583
Loans - QTC 432 484 1.689.938 1.871.5894 4,084,016 3.620.884

1,324,500 1,740 505 1.971.564 5,033 559 4,570 467

The outflows in the table above afe not expecied to CECUr sgnicanily earlier of for signacarty diferent amoUnts than mdecated in iha fab.

(d] Market risk
Market risk is the rsk that changes in market indices, such as interest des, will affect the Councils ingame ar the value of its holding of financial
instruments.
Infererst rate risk
Councd is expoded o Interest rale nsk hisugh its investments and barnowing held with financial instibufions and the Quasnshind Treasuny
Carporation (QTC).

Council has access o a mix of varisble and foed rale funding options through QTG so hal inlerest rale risk exposune can be mininsed

Councd does nol underake any hedging of interest rate nsk,

Councl does not account for any fxed-rate financial assets or financial labdities &t Fair YVelue thiough Prof or Loss, therefore a change in interest
rates at the fepeding dale would not affect profit or loss
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27 Going Concamn

On 25 January 2021, Council recaived advice from the Acling Directar-General of the Deparirnent of State Devaloprment, Infrastruciure, Local
Gowvernment and Planning thet Council's fnancial situation of erilically low cash reserves required the appoiniment of BDO Sendices Py Lid as the
Financial Contraller. This engagement commaenced 29 January 2021 and concluded on 30 June 2022,

F¥2023 is the first full financal year where financial management responsibilities were relumed to Council.

AL 3D June 2023, council has a nel current asset position of $3,284,544 . an mprovement from 2022 which was a net Babiity position of 134,232
Council's operating result also signficantly improved fram an operating loss of $1,996,202 in the 2022 financial year to an operating surplus of
51,787 155 for the year ended 30 June 2022,

It is noted that the wofront recaipt of the FY2024 Financial Assislance Granl in Jure 2023 has significanlly improved Councils result for tha year.
£2.5m of funding was recaived in advance which has increased cash and cash eguivalents at year end. To support ongoing financial
sustanainability. Council remaing focussed on generaling own source revenue and exercising siricter contral aver procuremeant, with the focus being
on value for money, (he reduction of discretisnary spending and lighter management of recurring operational expenses. Such measunes include:

- Gouncil's primary sources of income, being grant funding. and constructian and recoverabls works, are expected o continue into the future
- System and project moniboring practices were imglemanted by lhe Financial Cantroller. Council's goal is to continue ta moniter systems and
processes 1o ensure bater practice compllance,

- Council is activaly managing its debtors to reduce the risk of credit lssas. The majofity of Councils dabilors at year end were [ess than 60 days
outstanding.

- Council continues to review its fees and charges and the margine on BAS works o be in line with ather indigenous councils. Council is also
aciively woarking o tender for neighbouring council’s 'work o make use of the uquipmnnt and skills that we have availabie in a Fm‘l’llid:llﬂ FIANNEr.

= The financa team have re-eslablished refalionship with funding bodies and govemrment deparimants and now fotus on progressively invaicng
funding bodies as work is performed on projects.

- Council kas exarcised stricter cantrel over procuremeant, with tha focus being oo value for money, the reduction of discrationary spending and
fighter management of recurring cperational sxpenses.

For the reasons outlined abova, the Council have prepared these financial statements on a going concem basis.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023 Page 72 of 82



2023

12

Management Certificate
For the year andad 30 June 2023
Chief Executive Officar
Kiley Hanzlow
Date: 08

the prescribed raquirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Locad Govarmment Regulation 2012 for the estabkshment and
r 12 ¢ 2023

keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respests; and
the general pumpose financial statements, as sat out on pages 11o 28, present a Irue and fair view, in accordance with Australian

Accounting Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year and financial position at the end of the year,

These general purpese financial statemants have been prepared pursuant 1o sections 176 and 177 of the  Local Govemment Ragulation 2012

[the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.
In accordance with section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify thak

Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council

Financial statements

Far the year ended 30 June 2023
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This fabric print designed by Bana Yirriji Artist Lila Creek represents Baral which means
tracks and what animals are travelling around. Some of the tracks we see are from

kurriyala (snake), walkarr (lizard) and kadar (wallaby).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To Councillors of Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council

Report on the audit of the financial report

O pinion

| have audited the financial report of Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council.
In my opinicn, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council's financial position as at 20 June 2023, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b}  complies with the Local Government Act 2008, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including material accounting
policy informaticn, and the certificate given by the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Auvdifor-General Audifing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of
my report.

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have alzo fulfilled my other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and approprate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

ther information comprises financial and non-financial information {other than the audited
financial report) in an entity's annual report.

At the date of thiz auditor's repont, the available other information in Wujal Wujal Aboriginal
Shire Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023 was the current year financial
sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability statement.

The councillors are responsible for the other information.
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My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as reguired by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have formed a separate opinion on the curmrent year financial
sustainability statement.

Im connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility iz to read the other
information and, in doing =0, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or ctherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatermnent of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the financial report

The councillors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with the Local Government Act 20039, the Local Government
Regulation 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
councillors determing is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The councillors are also responsible for assessing the council’s ability to continue as a going
concern, dizclozing, as applicable, matters relating to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it i intended to abolish the council or to otherwize cease
operations of the council.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reazonable azsurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to izsue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material mizstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arige from fraud or ermor and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of this financial report.

Az part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional sceplicism throughout the audit. | also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or ermor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidencs that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from ermor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omizssions, misrepresentations, or the ovemide of internal control.

" Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for forming an opinion on
the effectivensss of the council's intemal control.

* Evaluate the appropriatensss of material accounting policy information uzed and the
reasonablzness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the council's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exiatz related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the council's
ability to continue as a going concermn. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. | base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the council to cease to continue as a
going concerm.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

Feport on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with 5. 40 of the Audifor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2023:
a) | received all the information and explanations | required

b) | consider that, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and
keeping of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

Prescribed requirements scope

The prescribed requirements for the establishment and keeping of accounts are contained in
the Local Government Act 2009, and the Local Government Regulation 2012. The applicable
requirements include those for keeping financial records that comectly record and explain the
council's transactions and account balances to enable the preparation of a true and fair
financial report.

JA A~/

David Adams CQueensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brizbane

12 December 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Councillors of Wujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement
Opinion
I have audited the accompanying curment year financial sustainability statement of Wujal

Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2023, compriging the statement,
explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief
Executive Officer.

In accordance with 5. 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all

material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Wujal Wujal Aborginal
Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2023 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audifor-General Audifing Sfandards, which

incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the awdit of the current year financial
sustainability stafement section of my report.

I am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Profeasional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accounfants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in
Australia. | have alzo fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

I believe that the audit evidence | have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.
Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

I draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The curmrent year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purposze of fulfilling the council's reporting
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012, As a result, the statement

may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matier.
Other Information

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited
financial report) in an entity's annual report.

At the date of this auditor's report, the available other information in Wujal Wujal Aboriginal
Shire Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2023 was the general purpose
financial statements and long-term financial sustainability statement.

The councillors are responsible for the other information.

My opinion on the cumrent year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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However, az required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have formed a separate
opinion on the general purpose financial report.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is fo read the other
information and, in doing =0, consider whether the other information iz materally inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwize appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there iz a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the current year financial sustainability
statement

The councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Govermment Regulation 2012.
The councillors rezponsibility also includes such intemal control as the councillors determine
iz necessary to enable the preparation and fair pregentation of the statement that is
accurately calculated and iz free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or ermor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of azsurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and are considersed matenal if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this statement.

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance
of the reported ratics, nor on the council’s future sustainability.

Az part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to
fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The rigk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from ermor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemide of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of material accounting policy information uged and the
reazonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

fiming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

J A~/

David Adams Quesenzland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane

12 December 2023
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Internal Audit | LGR s190 (s) (h)

The Council aims to establish and maintain a system of independent objective appraisal to examine and
evaluate Council’s internal control environment. Council has a system of internal controls that aim to
minimise risk and protect Council’s assets.

The internal audit function provides Council an independent review of the sufficiency and dependability
of established internal controls that aim to safeguard Council’s assets from loss, waste and fraud and
that Council’s activities are governed by the highest operational standards and ethics.

The purpose of the Council’s internal audit function is to provide an unbiased evaluation of the systems
and processes that underpin Council’s internal controls by verifying the effectiveness of Council’s risk
management, efficiency, control, and governance processes.

Council has undertaken work in the internal audit space in the 2022/23 financial year to review accounts
payable and payroll operations, which has further strengthened Council’s internal controls.

This Bulbuji print represents the dragonflies which are sacred. Bulbuiji start flying around once the rains come, they are also maja
(boss) for bana (water) and the walkarr (water goanna). Bana Yirriji Artist Junibel Doughboy.

Waujal Wujal Aboriginal Shire Council Annual Report 2022-2023 Page 82 of 82



	A Message from our Mayor
	From the CEO’s desk
	Shire Profile
	Our Elected Members
	Elected Member Profiles
	Mayor | Bradley Creek
	Deputy Mayor | Vincent Tayley
	Councillor | Robert Bloomfield
	Councillor | Vanessa Tayley
	Councillor | Regan Kulka

	Our Mission
	Our Values
	Feature Story: Equal employment opportunity

	Statutory Information
	Council meetings, councillor attendance and  remuneration
	Special meetings
	Councillor attendance | LGR s186 (c)
	The total remuneration, including superannuation contributions, paid to each councillor during the financial year | LGR s186(a)
	Councillors | Complaints referred to the Assessor | LGR s186 (1) (f) (j)
	Disciplinary action against councillor under section 150l (2) of the Local Government Act (LGR s186 (d) (i) (ii) (iii)
	Administrative Action Complaints | LGR s187 (1)(2)(a)(b)
	Investigation notices and local government responses| competitive neutrality complaints | LGA s190 (1) (i)(j)
	Action taken for, and expenditure on, a service, facility, or activity | LGR s190(1)(d)
	Beneficial enterprises | LGA s41
	Business Activity | LGA s45(a) (b) (c)
	Significant Business Activities | LGA S45 (b) (d)
	Competitive neutrality principle as applied to any significant business activity | LGA s45€
	Summary of investigation notices given for competitive neutrality complaints | LGR s190(1) (i)
	Responses of recommendations on any competitive neutrality complaints | LGR s190(1) (j)
	The number of invitations to change tenders | LGR S190 (1)(e)
	Summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted | LGR s190 (1) (g)
	Grants to Community Organisations | LGR s189(1)
	Overseas Travel | LGR s188 (1) (a) (b) (c) (€(e)
	Total remuneration packages to senior management and  the number of employees in each band | LGA s201 (s) (a) (b)
	Discretionary Funds | LGR s189(2)(a)
	List of registers maintained | LGR s190 (1) (f)
	Resolutions made under LGR s250(1) | adoption of an expenses reimbursement policy
	Resolutions made under LGR s250(2) | threshold for non-current physical asset to be treated as an expense

	The year in review
	The Chief Executive Officer’s assessment of progress against its 5-year corporate plan and its annual operational plan | LGR s190 (1) (a)
	Corporate Governance, Community Safely and Family Services
	Corporate Services
	Technical Services
	Community Services
	Building Services
	Operational Plan | Highlights of Achievements


	Community Financial Report
	1. Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Revenue
	Income
	Expenditure
	Net position | 2012 – 2023

	2. Statement of Financial Position
	Current Assets
	Breakdown of property, plant, and equipment

	3. Statement of Changes in Equity
	4. Statement of Cash Flows
	Council liabilities

	5. Measures of Financial Sustainability
	Financial Sustainability Ratios

	Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2023
	Audit report

